
 

1 

CITY OF OWOSSO 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

MONDAY, FEBRUARY 04, 2019 
7:30 P.M. 

 
Meeting to be held at City Hall 

301 West Main Street 
 

AGENDA 
 
OPENING PRAYER: 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 
ROLL CALL: 
APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA: 
APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING OF JANUARY 22, 2019: 
 

ADDRESSING THE CITY COUNCIL 
 

1. Your comments shall be made during times set aside for that purpose. 
2. Stand or raise a hand to indicate that you wish to speak. 
3. When recognized, give your name and address and direct your comments and/or questions to any 

City official in attendance. 
4. Each person wishing to address the City Council and/or attending officials shall be afforded one 

opportunity of up to four (4) minutes duration during the first occasion for citizen comments and 
questions.  Each person shall also be afforded one opportunity of up to three (3) minutes duration 
during the last occasion provided for citizen comments and questions and one opportunity of up to 
three (3) minutes duration during each public hearing.  Comments made during public hearings shall 
be relevant to the subject for which the public hearings are held. 

5. In addition to the opportunities described above, a citizen may respond to questions posed to him or 
her by the Mayor or members of the Council, provided members have been granted the floor to pose 
such questions. 

 

PROCLAMATIONS / SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS 
 
None. 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
1. Proposed Special Assessment Project – Ryan Street.  Conduct a public hearing to receive citizen 

comment regarding Resolution No. 3 for proposed Special Assessment District No. 2019-10 for Ryan 
Street from Chipman Street to Cedar Street for street reconstruction. 

 

CITIZEN COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS 
 

CITY MANAGER REPORT 
 
1. Project Status Report 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 
1. Special Assessment District No. 2019-14.  Authorize Resolution No. 4 setting a public hearing for 

Tuesday, February 19, 2019 to receive citizen comment regarding Special Assessment District No. 
2019-14 for Williams Street, from Shiawassee Street to Washington Street for street rehabilitation. 



 

2 

2. Boards and Commissions Appointments.  Approve the following Mayoral Boards and Commissions 
appointments: 

 
Name Board/Commission Term Expires 

Brent Mowinski Downtown Loan Committee  (bus own) 06-30-2019 
Nicholas Pidek Downtown Loan Committee  (bus own) 06-30-2020 
Lori Bailey Downtown Loan Committee  (Council rep) 06-30-2021 
Bradley Kirkland Downtown Loan Committee  (bank rep) 06-30-2019 
Craig Bishop Downtown Loan Committee  (bank rep) 06-30-2020 

 
3. Purchase Authorization – Water Line Push Camera. Waive competitive bidding requirements, 

authorize purchase of one 330 ft Verisight Pro Plus Camera from Bell Equipment Company in the 
amount of $23,500.00, and further authorize payment in full to the vendor upon satisfactory delivery 
of the equipment with 50% of said price to potentially be reimbursed via an MMRMA RAP Grant. 
 

4. Purchase Authorization - DPW Fleet Pickup Trucks. Waive competitive bidding requirements, 
authorize the purchase of one Ford F150 4x2 pickup and one Ford F250 4x4 pickup truck for the 
DPW fleet from Signature Ford Lincoln Mercury in the amount of $68,489.00 utilizing State Contract 
No. 071 B7700180/Macomb County Contracts 71-15 & 21-18, approve a contingency of $5,000.00 for 
estimated shipping and handling and unplanned configuration changes, and further authorize 
payment to the vendor upon satisfactory delivery of said vehicles. 
 

5. MDOT Cost Agreement No. 18-5568. Authorize the execution of MDOT Cost Agreement No. 18-5568 
for the reconstruction of S. Washington Street from Gute Street to Corunna Avenue. 

  

ITEMS OF BUSINESS 
 
1. Surface Transportation Program Fund Application - North Street.  Approve grant application to 

the Michigan Department of Transportation for Surface Transportation Program funds to assist in the 
reconstruction of North Street from Shiawassee Street to Hickory Street, authorize participation in the 
Small Urban Program, and further authorize commitment of City funds in the amount of $183,000 plus 
the cost of project design engineering and construction administration. 

 
2. Surface Transportation Program Fund Application - Gould Street. Approve grant application to 

the Michigan Department of Transportation for Surface Transportation Program funds to assist in the 
reconstruction of Gould Street from Oliver Street to Moore Street, authorize participation in the 
Small Urban Program, and further authorize commitment of City funds in the amount of $305,000 plus 
the cost of project design engineering and construction administration. 

 

COMMUNICATIONS 
 
1. Cheryl A. Grice, Finance Director.  Revenue & Expenditure Report – December 2018. 
2. Downtown Development Authority/Main Street.  Minutes of January 9, 2019. 
3. Mid-Shiawassee County WWTP Review Board.  Minutes of January 29, 2019. 
 

CITIZEN COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS 
 

NEXT MEETING 
 
Tuesday, February 19, 2019 
 



 

3 

BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS OPENINGS 
 
Building Board of Appeals – Alternate - term expires June 30, 2019 
Building Board of Appeals – Alternate - term expires June 30, 2021 
Brownfield Redevelopment Authority – term expires June 30, 2022 
Historical Commission – term expires December 31, 2020 
Historical Commission – 2 terms expire December 31, 2021 
Parks & Recreation Commission – term expires June 30, 2019 
Zoning Board of Appeals - Alternate – term expires June 30, 2021 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
The City of Owosso will provide necessary reasonable auxiliary aids and services, such as signers for the 
hearing impaired and audio recordings of printed materials being considered at the meeting, to individuals 
with disabilities at the meeting/hearing upon seventy-two (72) hours notice to the City of Owosso.  
Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact the City of Owosso by 
writing, calling, or emailing the following:  Owosso City Clerk’s Office, 301 West Main Street, Owosso, MI  
48867; Phone: (989) 725-0500; Email:  city.clerk@ci.owosso.mi.us. The City of Owosso Website address 
is www.ci.owosso.mi.us.  
   



Draft 1 01-22-2019 

CITY OF OWOSSO  
REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

MINUTES OF JANUARY 22, 2019        
7:30 P.M. 

 
 
PRESIDING OFFICER:  MAYOR PRO-TEM SUSAN J. OSIKA 
 
OPENING PRAYER:  PASTOR MARK GREEN 
    OWOSSO FIRST CHURCH OF THE NAZARENE 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: TOM MANKE 
 
PRESENT: Mayor Pro-Tem Susan J. Osika, Councilmembers Loreen F. Bailey, 

Janae L. Fear, Jerome C. Haber, Daniel A. Law, and Nicholas L. Pidek. 
 
ABSENT: Mayor Christopher T. Eveleth. 
 
A moment of silence was held in observance of the tragic death of James Stewart, son of Circuit Court 
Judge Matthew Stewart. 
 

APPROVE AGENDA 
 
Motion by Councilmember Haber to approve the agenda with the following change: 
 
 Add one Special Presentation. 
 
Motion supported by Councilmember Fear and concurred in by unanimous vote. 
 

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING OF JANUARY 7, 2019 
 
Motion by Councilmember Bailey to approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of January 7, 2019 as 
presented. 
 
Motion supported by Councilmember Haber and concurred in by unanimous vote. 
 

PROCLAMATIONS / SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS 
 
Enjoy Award Presentation    (This item was added to the agenda.)   
 
City Manager Nathan R. Henne noted that the Friends of the Shiawassee River was holding their Annual 
Meeting & Celebration this evening and there were at least five people that couldn’t attend because of 
their commitment to be here for the City Council meeting.   , on behalf of the Friends of the Shiawassee 
River, presented City Clerk Amy K. Kirkland with the Enjoy Award recognizing her efforts during Friends’ 
events that allow others to enjoy themselves.  Clerk Kirkland said she was surprised and honored.  She 
thanked the Friends of the River for the award. 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
None. 
 



Draft 2 01-22-2019 

CITIZEN COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS 
 
Tom Manke, 2910 W. M-21, spoke about human trafficking activity in town and what he thought were 
efforts by police in the county to keep the problem from the public. 
 
Dan Smith, 1210 Corunna Avenue, indicated he owns a small business on Corunna Avenue and has had 
the City clean up and bill him for trash removal twice now.  He accepted responsibility for one but not the 
other because he was not notified ahead of time.  City Manager Henne agreed to meet with Mr. Smith to 
talk about the situation and see what sort of resolution could be reached. 
 
County Commissioner John Horvath, District 2, updated the Council on discussions at the county level, 
specifically noting his reservations about increasing the emergency manager’s hours to full time. 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Osika asked that the Council remove Consent 3.  Boards & Commissions Appointments 
from the Consent Agenda. 
 
Motion by Councilmember Bailey  to approve the Consent Agenda as follows: 
 
Proposed Special Assessment Project – Ryan Street.  Authorize Resolution No. 2 setting a public 
hearing for Monday, February 4, 2019 for proposed Special Assessment District No. 2019-10 for Ryan 
Street from Chipman Street to Cedar Street for street reconstruction as follows: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 06-2019 
 

RYAN STREET 
FROM CHIPMAN STREET TO CEDAR STREET 
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT RESOLUTION NO. 2 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council has ordered the City Manager to prepare a report for public improvement, 
more particularly hereinafter described; and 
 

RYAN STREET, A PUBLIC STREET, FROM CHIPMAN STREET TO CEDAR STREET; 
STREET RECONSTRUCTION 

 
WHEREAS, the City Manager prepared said report and the same has been filed with the City Council as 
required by the Special Assessment Ordinance of the City of Owosso and the Council has reviewed said 
report. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT: 
 
1. The plans and estimate of cost and the report of the City Manager for said public improvement 

shall be filed in the office of the City Clerk and shall be available for public examination. 
 
2. The City Council hereby determines that the Public Improvement hereinafter set forth may be 

necessary. 
 
3. The City Council hereby approves the estimate of cost of said public improvement to be 

$530,810.40 and determines that $107,385.96 thereof shall be paid by special assessment 
imposed on the lots and parcels of land more particularly hereinafter set forth, which lots and 
parcels of land are hereby designated to be all of the lots and parcels of land to be benefited by 
said improvements and determines that $423,424.44 of the cost thereof shall be paid by the City 
at large because of benefit to the City at large. 

 



Draft 3 01-22-2019 

4. The City Council hereby determines that the portion of the cost of said public improvement to be 
specially assessed shall be assessed in accordance with the benefits to be received. 

 
5. The City Council shall meet at the Owosso City Hall Council Chambers on Monday, February 4, 

2019 for the purpose of hearing all persons to be affected by the proposed public improvement. 
 
6. The City Clerk is hereby directed to cause notice of the time and place of the hearing to be 

published once in The Argus Press, the official newspaper of the City of Owosso, not less than 
seven (7) days prior to the date of said hearing and shall further cause notice of said hearing to 
be sent by first class mail to each owner of property subject to assessment, as indicated by the 
records in the City Assessor's Office as shown on the general tax roll of the City, at least (10) full 
days before the time of said hearing, said notice to be mailed to the addresses shown on said 
general tax rolls of the City. 

 
7. The notice of said hearing to be published and mailed shall be in substantially the following form: 
 

NOTICE OF SPECIAL ASSESSMENT HEARING 
CITY OF OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 

 
TO THE OWNERS OF THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED PROPERTY: 
 

TAKE NOTICE that the City Council intends to acquire and construct the following described 
public improvement: 
 

Ryan Street, a Public Street, from Chipman Street to Cedar Street 
Street Reconstruction 

 
The City Council intends to defray apart or all of the cost of the above-described public improvement by 
special assessment against the above described property. 
 
TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that City Council has caused plans and an estimate of the cost and report for 
the above described public improvement to be prepared and made by the City Manager and the same is 
on file with the City Clerk and available for public examination. 
 
TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that the City Council will meet at the Owosso City Hall Council Chambers, 
Owosso, Michigan at 7:30 o'clock p.m. on Monday, February 4, 2019 for the purpose of hearing any 
person to be affected by the proposed public improvement. 
 
 
Property Lease – Tillable Acreage - Twenty One-Day Posting.   Authorize twenty-one (21) day posting 
period for the lease of approximately 10 acres of city owned tillable land near Hopkins Lake to Shawnee 
Creek Farms for $500.00 for the 2019 farming season as detailed below: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 07-2019 
 

AUTHORIZING 21-DAY POSTING FOR 
A CROP FARMING CASH RENT AGREEMENT 

WITH  MATT DUTCHER AND KEVIN DUTCHER D/B/A SHAWNEE CREEK FARMS 
 
WHEREAS, the city of Owosso, Michigan ("City") is a municipal corporation organized under the 
provisions of the Home Rule City Act, Public Act 279 of 1909, as amended, and is governed by the 
provisions of the Owosso City Charter adopted April 6, 1964, as amended ("Charter"); and 
 
WHEREAS, the city owns certain tillable acreage near Hopkins Lake that would be suitable for farming; 
and 
 



Draft 4 01-22-2019 

WHEREAS, the city is not currently utilizing the land and desires to lease the land for farming purposes; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, Matt and Kevin Dutcher, doing-business-as Shawnee Creek Farms, have expressed an 
interest in leasing the land for a one-year period; and 
 
WHEREAS, Charter Section14.3 (b)(2) provides for a twenty one day posting period to allow public 
inspection of the proposed lease.  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the city council of the city of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST:  the city of Owosso has heretofore determined that as owner of property that is suitable 
for farming that a cash rent agreement has been proposed for such land be leased to 
Matt Dutcher and Kevin Dutcher d/b/a Shawnee Creek Farms which farms adjacent land. 

 
SECOND: the city council approves the posting of said agreement for a period of at least 21-days to 

allow for public inspection. 
 
 
Boards and Commissions Appointments.  (This item was removed from the agenda.) 
 
 
Memorial Healthcare Gala Permission.   Approve request from Owosso Community Players for the 
closure of South Park Street from Comstock Street to Main Street on Saturday, February 2, 2019, and the 
first Saturday in February hereafter, from 5:00 p.m. until 11:00 p.m. for handicap and valet parking for the 
annual Memorial Healthcare Gala, waive the insurance requirement, and approve Traffic Control Order 
No. 1411 formalizing the request. 
 
 
Contract Amendment - 2018 Street Program Engineering Services Contract.  Approve Amendment 
No. 6 to the 2018 Street Program Engineering Services Contract with Fleis & Vandenbrink Engineering, 
Inc. adding $20,400.00 for additional construction monitoring and administration services for wrap-up of 
the Hanover and Harding Street projects, and authorize payment to the contractor up to the contract 
amount, including Amendment Nos. 1-6 as follows: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 08-2019 
  

AUTHORIZING CHANGE ORDER NO. 6 TO ADDENDUM NO. 4 
 TO THE CONTRACT FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES WITH 

FLEIS & VANDENBRINK ENGINEERING, INC. FOR 
THE 2018 STREET PROGRAM ENGINEERING SERVICES CONTRACT 

  
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, approved a Contract with Fleis & 
Vandenbrink Engineering Inc. on July 3, 2017 for Engineering Survey and Design Services for the 2018 
Street Program in the amount of $251,000.00; and 
 
WHEREAS, City Council approved Amendments No 1 thru 5 totaling $188,835.00 to the Contract with 
Fleis & Vandenbrink Engineering, Inc. for additional engineering services and making the current Contract 
amount $439,835.00; and  
  
WHEREAS, the city requests additional services of the consultant in the amount of $20,400.00  to provide 
construction engineering and administration services for the City’s 2018 Street Resurfacing Program-
Contract 1, that are beyond the original contractual scope of services; and 
  



Draft 5 01-22-2019 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
  

FIRST:  The city of Owosso has theretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the 
public interest to amend the contract with Fleis & Vandenbrink Engineering Inc. for a cost 
to the city of Owosso of $20,400.00 as outlined within its proposal. 

 
SECOND: The mayor and city clerk are requested and authorized to sign Contract Change Order 

No. 6 to Addendum No. 4 to the Contract between the City of Owosso, Michigan and 
Fleis & Vandenbrink Engineering, Inc. 

  
FOURTH:    The Accounts Payable department is authorized to make payment up to the amended 

amount of $460,235.00 to Fleis & Vandenbrink Engineering, Inc. upon successful 
completion of stated work.  

  
FIFTH:   The above expenses shall be paid from the 2016 Unlimited Obligation Bond Proceeds 

Account No. 202-451-818.000. 
 
 
Change Order – 2017 Street Resurfacing Program Contract.  Authorize Change Order No. 3 to the 
2017 Street Resurfacing Program Contract with Malley Construction, Inc. adding $12,920.00 to the total 
contract amount to correct line item quantities and additions that were not correctly posted to reflect the 
additional work completed, and further authorize payment to the contractor as detailed: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 09-2019 
 

AUTHORIZING CHANGE ORDER NO. 3 
TO THE CONTRACT BETWEEN THE CITY OF OWOSSO AND  

MALLEY CONSTRUCTION INCORPORATED 
FOR 2017 STREET RESURFACING PROGRAM CONTRACT 

 
WHEREAS, the city of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, approved a contract with Malley 
Construction, Inc. on August 7, 2017 for street, watermain, and storm sewer improvements for various 
streets; altogether part of the 2017 Street Resurfacing Program; and 
 
WHEREAS, during the course of the contract the City requested changes in work from Malley 
Construction, Inc. formalized in Change Order Nos. 1 & 2; and 
 
WHEREAS, errors in the unit price extensions were discovered in Change Order No. 2, resulting in Malley 
Construction, Inc. being underpaid for the work performed; and  
 
WHEREAS, proposed Change Order No. 3 formally corrects the errors and authorizes payment to the 
contractor according to unit prices. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: It is advisable, necessary and in the public interest to approve Change Order No. 3 
amending the 2017 Street Resurfacing Program Contract with Malley Construction Inc. to 
correct mathematical errors discovered in Change Order No. 2. 

 
SECOND: The mayor and city clerk are instructed and authorized to sign the document substantially 

in form attached as Exhibit B, Contract Change Order No. 3 (Final) in the amount of 
$12,920.00; a net increase to the Contract revising the current total contract amount from 
$2,967,984.93 to $2,980,904.93. 

 



Draft 6 01-22-2019 

THIRD: The accounts payable department is authorized to pay Malley Construction, Inc. for work 
satisfactorily completed up to the revised amount of the Contract, including Change 
Order No. 3, in the total amount of $2,980,904.93. 

 
FOURTH:   The above additional expenses in the amount of $12,920.00 shall be paid from the Water 

Fund Account No. 591-901-972.000. 
 
 
Change Order – Survey & Identification of Lead and Galvanized Water Service Lines Contract.  
Authorize Change Order No. 1 to the contract with Greenscape General Contracting, LLC for the Survey 
& Identification of Lead and Galvanized Water Service Lines (part of the Pilot Drinking Water Grant 
project) increasing the amount by $14,100.00 for additional site inspections required to complete the 
contract and further authorize payment to the contractor for the contract amount, including Change Order 
No. 1 as follows: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 10-2019 
 

APPROVAL OF CHANGE ORDER NO.1 TO AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF OWOSSO AND 
GREENSCAPE GENERAL CONTRACTING FOR SURVEY AND IDENTIFICATION OF LEAD AND 

GALVANIZED WATER SERVICE LINES 
 
WHEREAS, the city of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, entered into an agreement with the 
Michigan Department of Environment Quality (MDEQ) on April 2, 2018 to implement a Pilot Drinking 
Water Infrastructure Grant for the purpose of identifying lead and galvanized water service lines in the city 
of Owosso water distribution system; and 
 
WHEREAS, the city of Owosso entered into a services agreement with Greenscape General Contracting 
as approved at its regularly scheduled council meeting of September 17, 2018 for the survey and 
identification of lead and galvanized water service lines; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Director of Public Services & Utilities added additional locations for the survey and 
identification of lead and galvanized water service lines, which increased the contract level of effort for 
site investigation and site restoration services.  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the city council of the city of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: The city of Owosso has heretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the 
public interest to enter into change order No.1 in the amount of $14,100.00 with 
Greenscape General Contracting for providing additional survey and identification 
services of lead and galvanized water service lines in accordance with MDEQ Pilot 
Drinking Water Grant compliance guidelines. 

 
SECOND: The accounts payable department is authorized to submit payment to Greenscape 

General Contracting in an amount of $23,550.00 plus change order No.1 in the amount of 
$14,100.00 for a total not to exceed $37,650.00.  

 
THIRD: The above expenses shall be paid for from the waster fund account 591-901-972.000. 

 
 
Change Orders – 2018 Street Resurfacing Program, Contract No. 1.  Authorize Change Order Nos. 2 
& 3 to 2018 Street Resurfacing Program, Contract No. 1 with Rhode Brothers Excavating, Inc. decreasing 
the amount of the contract by $158,583.61 for reductions in the unit quantities used and penalties for 
exceeding completion deadlines as shown below: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 11-2019 



Draft 7 01-22-2019 

 
AUTHORIZING CHANGE ORDER NOS. 2 & 3 

TO THE CONTRACT BETWEEN THE CITY OF OWOSSO AND  
ROHDE BROS. EXCAVATING, INC. 

FOR 2018 STREET RESURFACING PROGRAM-CONTRACT NO. 1 
 

WHEREAS, the city of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, approved a contract with Rohde Bros. 
Excavating, Inc. on May 7, 2018 for resurfacing various streets of the 2018 Street Resurfacing Program-
Contract No. 1; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City has requested changes in work from Rohde Bros. Excavating, Inc. with regards to its 
water main and road construction as described within Change Order Nos. 2 & 3; and 
 
WHEREAS, Rohde Bros. Excavating, Inc. agrees to the work item quantities and pricing of both change 
orders, and the final contract amount as set forth in Change Order No.3. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: The City of Owosso has determined it is advisable, necessary and in the public interest to 
amend the 2018 Street Resurfacing Program Contract No. 1 with Rohde Bros. 
Excavating, Inc. as described within Change Order Nos. 2 & 3. 

 
SECOND: The mayor and city clerk are instructed and authorized to sign the documents 

substantially in form attached as Exhibits B and C, Contract Change Order Nos. 2 & 3 in 
the amount of ($158,583.61), a net decrease revising the total Contract amount from 
$1,292,405.00 to $1,133,821.39. 

 
THIRD: The accounts payable department is authorized to pay Rohde Bros. Excavating, Inc. for 

work satisfactorily completed up to the revised Contract amount that includes Change 
Order Nos. 2 & 3 in the amount of $1,133,821.39. 

 
FOURTH:   The projected expenses paid from the 2016 Unlimited Obligation Bond Proceeds 

Account ($101,617.11) and City Water Main & Hydrants Account No. 591-901- 
972.000 ($56,966.50), shall be decreased by these amounts. 

 
 
Change Order – Gould House Ceiling Repair – Electrical Contract.  Authorize Change Order No. 1 to 
the Gould House Ceiling Repair Project – Electrical Contract with Ludington Electric, Inc. increasing the 
amount of the contract by $800.00 for revisions to the lighting system, and further authorize payment to 
the contractor up to the revised contract amount of $3,612.00 as follows: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 12-2019 
 

AUTHORIZING CHANGE ORDER NO. 1 
TO THE CONTRACT BETWEEN THE CITY OF OWOSSO - HISTORICAL COMMISSION  

AND LUDINGTON ELECTRIC, INC. 
FOR THE GOULD HOUSE CEILING REPAIR PROJECT – ELECTRICAL CONTRACT 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council, at the recommendation of the Owosso Historical Commission, Shiawassee 
County, Michigan, approved a contract with Ludington Electric, Inc. for electrical work in the Great Room 
of the Amos Gould House; and 
 
WHEREAS, upon further examination of the ceiling it became evident that a different lighting system was 
needed in order to maintain the structural integrity of the ceiling; and 
 



Draft 8 01-22-2019 

WHEREAS, Ludington Electric, Inc. has since provided a recommendation for another lighting system 
that is more in alignment with the historical nature of the home at an additional cost. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: It is advisable, necessary and in the public interest to amend the Gould House Ceiling 
Repair Project – Electrical Contract with Ludington Electric, Inc. as described in Change 
Order No. 1. 

 
SECOND: The mayor and city clerk are instructed and authorized to approve the document attached 

as Change Order No. 1 in the amount of $800; revising the total contract amount from 
$2,812.00 to $3,612.00. 

 
THIRD: The accounts payable department is authorized to pay Ludington Electric, Inc. for work 

satisfactorily completed up to the revised contract amount of $3,612.00. 
 
FOURTH: A special thank you is given to Ludington Electric, Inc. for their donation of $1,000 of in-

kind services for this project. 
 
 
Change Order – Parking Ticket Management System Service Agreement.  Authorize Change Order 
No. 1 to the Parking Ticket Management System Service Agreement with Complus Data Innovations, Inc. 
changing the terms of authorization from an annual allocation to a fee per ticket issued of $2.41 and 
further authorize the accounts payable department to pay the vendor for actual quantities required as 
detailed below: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 13-2019 
 

AUTHORIZING CHANGE ORDER NO. 1 
TO THE SERVICE AGREEMENT WITH COMPLUS DATA INNOVATIONS, INC. 
FOR THE PARKING TICKET MANAGEMENT SYSTEM SERVICE AGREEMENT 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan approve a service agreement with 
Complus Data Innovations, Inc. on July 16, 2018 for the provision of a parking ticket management 
system; and 
 
WHEREAS, since its implementation the City has seen a significant increase in the number of parking 
tickets issued; and 
 
WHEREAS, due to the number of tickets issued the annual allocation for this system is anticipated to be 
exhausted by the end of February making a change order to increase the contract amount necessary; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the City desires to avoid a similar situation in the future, recommending a change in the way 
the contract and payment for services rendered are authorized from an annual allocation to a per ticket 
issued fee. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: It is advisable, necessary and in the public interest to approve Change Order No. 1 
amending  Council’s terms of authorization from an annual allocation of $6,025.00 to a 
fee per ticket issued of $2.41. 

 
SECOND: Passage of this resolution shall serve as documentation of said change and shall apply to 



Draft 9 01-22-2019 

the contract retroactive to its start. 
 
THIRD: The accounts payable department is authorized to pay Complus Data Innovations, Inc. in 

accordance with the contract unit price of $2.41 per ticket issued for actual quantities 
required. 

 
 
Bid Rejection – Tree & Stump Removal Services Bid.  Reject the bids received for the Tree & Stump 
Removal Services Bid as none of the responses were within budget parameters as detailed: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 14-2019 
 

AUTHORIZATION TO REJECT ALL BIDS RECEIVED FOR  
TREE AND STUMP REMOVAL SERVICES 

 
WHEREAS, the city of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, advertised for competitive tree and stump 
removal services; and 
 
WHEREAS, all dollar amounts for bids received were higher than FY2018-2019 funding parameters could 
support; and  
 
WHEREAS, it is the recommendation of the Director of Public Services & Utilities to reject all bids for lack 
of available funding.  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: It is advisable, necessary and in the public interest to reject all bids received for the 2019 
tree and stump removal services bid. 

 
 
Bid Award – Lead & Galvanized Water Service Line Replacement Contract.  Approve bid award to 
Green Tech Systems, LLC for the replacement of lead and galvanized water service lines in the amount 
of $257,904.00, authorize a contingency amount of $25,000, and further authorize payment to the 
contractor up to the contract amount plus the contingency (with prior written approval) upon satisfactory 
completion of the work or a portion thereof as follows: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-2019 
 

AUTHORIZATION TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH GREEN TECH SYSTEMS, LLC OF 
KAWKAWLIN, MICHIGAN FOR REPLACEMENT OF LEAD & GALVANIZED WATER SERVICE LINES 
 
WHEREAS, the city of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, entered into an agreement with the 
Michigan Department of Environment Quality (MDEQ) on April 2, 2018 to implement a Pilot Drinking 
Water Infrastructure Grant for the purpose of identifying and replacing lead and galvanized water service 
lines in the city of Owosso water distribution system; and 
 
WHEREAS, the city and Director of Public Services & Utilities desires to enter into an agreement with 
Green Tech Systems, LLC for the replacement of lead and galvanized water service lines, in accordance 
with MDEQ Pilot Drinking Water Grant compliance guidelines. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the city council of the city of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: The city of Owosso has heretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the 
public interest to enter into an agreement with Green Tech Systems, LLC for providing 



Draft 10 01-22-2019 

construction replacement services of lead and galvanized water service lines in 
accordance with MDEQ Pilot Drinking Water Grant compliance guidelines. 

 
SECOND: The accounts payable department is authorized to submit payment to Green Tech 

Systems, LLC in an amount not to exceed $257,904.00 for construction replacement 
services, plus an additional contingency amount of $25,000.00 with prior authorization, 
for a total of $282,904.00.  

 
THIRD: The above expenses shall be paid for from the Water Fund account 591-901-972.000 

pending 100% reimbursement from MDEQ Grant funds. 
 
 
Bid Award – Sanitary & Storm Sewer Rehabilitation Contract.  Approve bid award to Inland Waters 
Pollution Control, Inc. for the repair and rehabilitation of severely deteriorated sanitary sewer and storm 
sewer lines involved in the 2019 Street Resurfacing Program in the amount of 769,005.50, authorize a 
contingency amount of $60,000.00, and further authorize payment to the contractor up to the contract 
amount plus the contingency (with prior written approval) upon satisfactory completion of the work or a 
portion thereof as follows: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 16-2019 
 

AUTHORIZATION TO ENTER INTO A SERVICES CONTRACT  
WITH INLAND WATERS POLLUTION CONTROL, INC OF DETROIT, MICHIGAN  

FOR SANITARY AND STORM SEWER REHABILITATION SERVICES 
 
WHEREAS, the city of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, entered into an agreement with Orchard, 
Hiltz & McClement, Inc. d/b/a OHM Advisors by the adoption of Resolution 95-2018 on June, 18, 2018, 
for development of bid specifications and providing construction management of critical sanitary and 
storm sewer piping repairs; and 
 
WHEREAS, the city and OHM Advisors advertised and received competitive bids for critical sanitary and 
storm sewer piping repairs, and have received qualified bids from several contractors; and   
 
WHEREAS, the Director of Public Services & Utilities has reviewed the bids received and the 
recommendation provided by OHM Advisors, and has determined that Inland Waters Pollution Control, 
Inc. of Detroit, Michigan has provided the lowest, responsive, and responsible bid for performing sanitary 
and storm sewer rehabilitation construction services for the city of Owosso.  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the city council of the city of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: The city of Owosso has heretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the 
public interest to contract with Inland Waters Pollution Control, Inc. of Detroit, Michigan 
for the provision of sanitary and storm sewer rehabilitation services to coincide with the 
2019 Street Rehabilitation Program. 

 
SECOND: The accounts payable department is authorized to submit payment to Inland Waters 

Pollution Control Inc. in an amount not to exceed $769,005.50, plus contingency of 
$60,000.00, for a total of $829,005.50.  

 
THIRD: The above expenses shall be paid for from the Wastewater Fund, 2016 Street Bond 

Fund, and the Street Maintenance Fund. 
 
Motion supported by Councilmember Haber and concurred in by unanimous vote. 
 



Draft 11 01-22-2019 

ITEMS OF BUSINESS 
 
MDEQ Sewer Revolving Fund Project Application – Sanitary Sewer Retention Basin & Lift Station 
 
Utilities Director Glenn M. Chinavare noted that such applications are competitive in nature and require 
significant documentation, hence the recommendation to contract for professional services.  He went on 
to say that the applications that will be developed will cast a wide net in regard to the projects submitted 
for funding, the intent being to avoid the need to start the process over should the scope of a project 
change slightly.  The City may not take on all, or any, of the projects that are approved for funding by the 
MDEQ depending on which projects are approved and whether other funding is available.  Any projects 
that are tapped to receive funding will be presented to Council for approval of the scope and cost. 
 
Motion by Councilmember Pidek to approve Addendum No. 10 to the Professional Engineering Services 
Contract with Orchard, Hiltz, & McCliment, Inc. for the development and submission of an MDEQ Sewer 
Revolving Fund Project Application for a sanitary sewer retention basin and lift station in the amount of 
$30,000.00, and authorize payment up to the addendum amount upon satisfactory submission of 
deliverables as formalized below: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 17-2019 
 

AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF ADDENDUM NO. 10 TO  
AN AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES  

WITH ORCHARD, HILTZ & MCCLIMENT, INC. D/B/A OHM ADVISORS 
 
WHEREAS, the city of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, entered into an agreement with Orchard, 
Hiltz & McClement, Inc. d/b/a OHM Advisors by the adoption of Resolution No. 69-2017 on May 15, 2017; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the city and Director of Public Services & Utilities recommends making application to the 
Michigan Department of Environmental Quality (MDEQ) for a Sewer Revolving Fund (SRF) loan to secure 
financing for construction of a 1.0 million gallon retention basin; and 
 
WHEREAS, OHM Advisors has provided a proposal for developing a project application for submission to 
the MDEQ in the amount of $30,000.00; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Director of Public Services has reviewed the proposal and has determined that the 
project proposal is fair and reasonable, and necessary for securing SRF funding for construction of a 1.0 
million retention basin, in order to pursue compliance with a Michigan Department of Environmental 
Quality (MDEQ) Consent Order regarding Sanitary Sewer Overflows (SSO’s). 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the city council of the city of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: The city of Owosso has heretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the 
public interest to expand the contract approved by Resolution No. 69-2017 on May 15, 
2017 with Orchard, Hiltz & McClement, Inc. d/b/a OHM Advisors to include engineering 
services for the development and submission of a MDEQ SRF Project Application to 
secure funding for the engineering design and construction of a retention basin at 1000 
Bradley Street and a and pump station located at 1122 Beehler Street. 

 
SECOND: The accounts payable department is authorized to submit payment to OHM Advisors in 

an amount not to exceed $30,000.00 for said engineering services.  
 
THIRD: The above expenses shall be paid for from the Wastewater Fund Account. 

 
Motion supported by Councilmember Law. 



Draft 12 01-22-2019 

 
Roll Call Vote.  
 
AYES: Councilmembers Bailey, Pidek, Mayor Pro-Tem Osika, Councilmembers Haber, Fear, and 

Law. 
 
NAYS:  None. 
 
ABSENT: Mayor Eveleth. 
 
 
MDEQ Sewer Revolving Fund Project Application – WWTP Process Equipment Upgrades 
 
It was noted that the following item is similar to the last but concentrates on the processes at the 
Wastewater Treatment Plant.  Recommended projects were determined utilizing the asset management 
plan that came about as a result of the SAW Grant.  
 
Motion by Councilmember Bailey to approve Addendum No. 5 to the SAW Grant Preparation Contract 
with Capital Consultants, Inc. d/b/a c2ae for the development and submission of an MDEQ Sewer 
Revolving Fund Project Application for process equipment upgrades at the Waste Water Treatment Plant 
in the amount of $70,000.00, and authorize payment up to the addendum amount upon satisfactory 
submission of deliverables as detailed below: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 18-2019 
 

AUTHORIZING ADDENDUM NO. 5 TO THE AGREEMENT  
FOR PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES  

WITH CAPITAL CONSULTANTS, INC. D/B/A C2AE 
 
WHEREAS, the city of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, entered into an agreement with Capital 
Consultants, Inc. d/b/a C2AE by the adoption of Resolution No. 115-2013 on October 21, 2013; and 
 
WHEREAS, the city and Director of Public Services & Utilities recommends making application to the 
Michigan Department of Environmental Quality (MDEQ) for a Sewer Revolving Fund (SRF) loan to secure 
financing for various capital process equipment upgrades at the Wastewater Treatment Plant; and 
 
WHEREAS, C2AE has provided a proposal for developing a project application for submission to the 
MDEQ in the amount of $70,000.00; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Director of Public Services has reviewed the proposal and has determined that the 
project proposal is fair and reasonable, and necessary for securing SRF funding for Phase I and Phase II 
of process equipment replacements as identified in the Wastewater Treatment Plant Asset Management 
Plan.  
  
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: The city of Owosso has heretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the 
public interest to contract with Capital Consultants, Inc. d/b/a C2AE for engineering 
services to develop and submit a project plan to the MDEQ to secure low interest SRF 
loan financing for various capital process equipment replacements as identified in the 
Wastewater Treatment Plant Asset Management Plan.  

 
SECOND: The accounts payable department is authorized to submit payment to Capital 

Consultants, Inc. d/b/a C2AE in the amount not to exceed $70,000.00.  
 



Draft 13 01-22-2019 

THIRD: The above expenses shall be paid from the Wastewater Fund Account. 
 
Motion supported by Councilmember Pidek. 
 
Roll Call Vote.  
 
AYES:  Mayor Pro-Tem Osika, Councilmembers Haber, Pidek, Bailey, Law, and Fear. 
 
NAYS:  None. 
 
ABSENT: Mayor Eveleth. 
 
 
Contract Extension – IT/Network Engineering Services 
 
The next two items were postponed from the January 7, 2019 meeting at the request of Councilmember 
Pidek. 
 
In response to Councilmember Pidek’s concerns City Manager Henne indicated he had looked into how 
other communities handle their IT services.  Most comparable cities have full time IT on staff, while 
smaller communities contract for services.  Currently the City pays significantly less for its IT services 
than other communities.  He said he would be happy to look into including funding in the upcoming 
budget for an IT audit or exploring a change in services once this contract has expired.  Going so far as to 
suggest including a discussion of the City’s IT services at the upcoming special meeting. 
 
Councilmember Pidek indicated that all of his questions had been answered and he was OK with moving 
forward. 
 
Councilmember Law noted that as someone that works in the IT industry he found the price quoted to be 
very reasonable. 
 
 Councilmember Fear said that in the future she would like to explore whether a local company could 
provide the services required. 
 
Motion by Councilmember Law to authorize extension of the contract with Logicalis, Inc. for the provision 
of network administrator services for the 2019 calendar year in an amount not to exceed $90,000.00, and 
further authorize payment to the vendor for services rendered up to the contract amount as follows: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 19-2019 
 

ADOPTING THE LOGICALIS, INC. PROJECT CHANGE REQUEST FOR JEFF KISH   
 
WHEREAS, the city of Owosso, a Michigan municipal corporation, utilizes a sophisticated network of 
computers to facilitate day-to-day operations; and 
 
WHEREAS, said network requires the services of a skilled professional to continue to function properly; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the city contracts with Logicalis, Inc. for the provision of network administrator services; and 
 
WHEREAS, the city council must adopt a resolution authorizing the terms of the contract for the calendar 
year effective January 1, 2019 through December 31, 2019.   
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 



Draft 14 01-22-2019 

FIRST: The City of Owosso has determined it is advisable, necessary and in the public interest to 
continue the contract with Logicalis, Inc. for network administrator services for the year 
beginning January 1, 2019. 

 
SECOND: The mayor and city clerk are instructed and authorized to sign the document substantially 

in form attached as Project Change Request between the City of Owosso and Logicalis, 
Inc. 

 
THIRD: The accounts payable department is authorized to pay Logicalis, Inc. for work 

satisfactorily performed in an amount not to exceed $90,000.00.  
 
FOURTH: The above expenses shall be paid from Account No. 101-258-818000. 
 
FIFTH: All prior resolutions and documents for the Logicalis Network Administrator Services 

and/or Staffing SOW are rescinded as of January 1, 2019. 
 
Motion supported by Councilmember Bailey. 
 
Roll Call Vote.  
 
AYES: Councilmember Pidek, Mayor Pro-Tem Osika, Councilmembers Law, Haber, Bailey, and 

Fear. 
 
NAYS:  None. 
 
ABSENT: Mayor Eveleth. 
 
 
Contract Authorization - Firewall Upgrade 
 
Motion by Councilmember Bailey to waive competitive bidding requirements and approve contract with 
Logicalis, Inc. for hardware, software, and professional services required to update the City's IT firewall in 
the amount of $13,765.83, and further approve payment upon satisfactory completion of the project or 
portion thereof as follows: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 20-2019 
 

ADOPTING THE LOGICALIS, INC. ASA UPGRADE OPTION QUOTATION # 2018-27783V2  
FOR UPGRADE OF THE CITY’S IT FIREWALL   

 
WHEREAS, the city of Owosso, a Michigan municipal corporation, utilizes a sophisticated network of 
computers to facilitate day-to-day operations; and 
 
WHEREAS, said network is protected by a firewall designed to shield it from cyber-attacks and threats; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, said firewall requires updating from time-to-time to ensure it is capable of protecting the 
network from the latest threats; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Code of Ordinances of the City of Owosso provides an exception to the competitive 
bidding requirements when professional services are sought; and  
 
WHEREAS, the city obtained a quote from its network engineering provider, Logicalis, Inc., for a firewall 
upgrade; and 
 
WHEREAS, city staff has found the quotation to be reasonable and appropriate. 



Draft 15 01-22-2019 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: The City of Owosso has determined it is advisable, necessary and in the public interest to 
waive the competitive bidding requirements and upgrade the city’s current IT firewall 
system to ensure it remains able to defend the city network from the latest cyber-threats. 

 
SECOND: The mayor and city clerk are instructed and authorized to sign the document substantially 

in form attached as ASA Upgrade Option Quotation # 2018-27783v2 between the City of 
Owosso and Logicalis, Inc. 

 
THIRD: The accounts payable department is authorized to pay Logicalis, Inc. for work 

satisfactorily performed in an amount not to exceed $13,765.83.  
 
FOURTH: The above expenses shall be paid from Account No. 401-000-980.100. 

 
Motion supported by Councilmember Haber. 
 
Roll Call Vote.  
 
AYES: Councilmembers Fear, Pidek, Mayor Pro-Tem Osika, Councilmembers Haber, Law, and 

Bailey. 
 
NAYS:  None. 
 
ABSENT: Mayor Eveleth. 
 
 
Set Council Retreat 
 
City Manager Henne indicated this special meeting will be the Council’s opportunity to set policy goals for 
the coming year.  He said he would like to start holding a similar retreat each year to develop goals that 
will direct the budget and provide clear objectives for staff. 
 
Motion by Councilmember Bailey to schedule a special Council meeting for Tuesday, January 29, 2019 at 
5:30 p.m. in the Armory Conference Room for the purpose of conducting a goal setting session.   
 
Motion supported by Councilmember Fear. 
 
Roll Call Vote.  
 
AYES: Councilmember Law, Mayor Pro-Tem Osika, Councilmembers Fear, Pidek, Bailey, and 

Haber. 
 
NAYS:  None. 
 
ABSENT: Mayor Eveleth. 
 

COMMUNICATIONS 
 
N. Bradley Hissong, Building Official.  December 2018 Building Department Report. 
N. Bradley Hissong Building Official.  December 2018 Code Violations Report. 
N. Bradley Hissong Building Official.  December 2018 Certificates Issued Report. 
N. Bradley Hissong Building Official.  December 2018 Inspections Report. 



Draft 16 01-22-2019 

Kevin D. Lenkart, Public Safety Director.  December 2018 Police Report. 
Kevin D. Lenkart, Public Safety Director.  December 2018 Fire Report. 
Historical Commission.  Minutes of December 10, 2018. 
Shiawassee Firefighter Memorial Board.  Minutes of December 15, 2018. 
 

CITIZEN COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS 
 
Tom Manke, 2910 W. M-21, commented on the BBC’s recent visit to the area, citizen sentiment that the 
economy has improved, and the hire of a part time individual to collect fees owed to the County by former 
prisoners. 
 
Councilmember Bailey thanked the City for serving as the fiduciary for Community Cats since its inception 
and announced that the organization would now be functioning under the Shiawassee Humane Society.  
She again expressed her thanks saying the organization would never have gotten off the ground without 
the help of the City and City staff. 
 

NEXT MEETING 
 
Monday, February 04, 2019 
 

BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS OPENINGS 
 
Building Board of Appeals – Alternate - term expires June 30, 2019 
Building Board of Appeals – Alternate - term expires June 30, 2021 
Brownfield Redevelopment Authority – term expires June 30, 2022 
Historical Commission – term expires December 31, 2020 
Historical Commission – 2 terms expire December 31, 2021 
Parks & Recreation Commission – term expires June 30, 2019 
Zoning Board of Appeals - Alternate – term expires June 30, 2021 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
Motion by Councilmember Bailey  for adjournment at 8:14 p.m. 
 
Motion supported by Councilmember Law and concurred in by unanimous vote. 
 
 
 
     __________________________________________  
     Susan J. Osika, Mayor Pro-Tem 
 
 
     __________________________________________  
     Amy K. Kirkland, City Clerk 



 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 

301 W. MAIN    OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958    WWW.CI.OWOSSO.MI.US 
 
 

 
 
DATE: January 28, 2019 
 
TO: Owosso City Council 
  
FROM: Glenn Chinavare, Director of Public Services 
 
SUBJECT: Ryan Street Reconstruction – Special Assessment Resolution No 3 
 
 
When deemed necessary, the city conducts a street improvement program. Public streets are selected for 
inclusion in the program either by citizen initiated petition or by selection of the city. Ryan Street, from 
Chipman Street to Cedar Street, is proposed by the city for street reconstruction. Property owners are 
then specially assessed to cover the cost of the proposed improvement.  Past practice has been to 
assess property owners along the street 40% of the proposed benefit and the remaining 60% to the 
community at large.  Each property owner can pay an assessment in one lump sum or in installments 
over the multi-year period (the period being determined by the amount of the average assessment).  
 
The special assessment process has five steps, each having its own purpose and accompanying 
resolution.  
 

Step One/Resolution No. 1 identifies the special assessment district(s), directs the city manager to 
estimate project costs and the amounts to be specially assessed, and determines the life of the 
proposed improvements. Resolution No. 1 for the proposed improvement was approved by City 
Council at its August 6, 2018 meeting.  
 
Step Two/Resolution No. 2 sets the date for the hearing of necessity on the projects.  It directs 
notices to be sent to each affected property owner detailing the proposed project, notifying them of 
the public hearing date, and the estimated amount of their assessment. Resolution No. 2 for the 
proposed improvement was approved by City Council at its January 22, 2019 meeting. 

 
Step Three/Resolution No. 3 documents the hearing of necessity.  This hearing provides affected 
residents with the opportunity to comment on whether they feel the project is necessary and of the 
proper scale.  After hearing citizen comment on the project the city council has three options:  if they 
agree that the project should proceed as proposed, the district is established and staff is directed to 
go on with the next steps of the proposed project, including obtaining bids; if they feel the project 
should go forward, but with some adjustments they may direct staff to make those adjustments and 
proceed; if they feel the project is not warranted and should not proceed at all they would simply fail 
to act on Resolution No. 3, effectively stopping the process.  Hearing of necessity will be held at the 
scheduled council meeting of February 4, 2019.   
 
Step Four/Resolution No. 4 takes place after the bids are received.  Estimated assessment 
amounts are adjusted if necessary to reflect the actual cost as dictated by the bids received.  A 
second public hearing is set to allow property owners to comment on their particular assessment.  
Each property owner is sent a second notice containing the date and time of the public hearing and 
the amount of the proposed assessment for their property.  
 
Step Five/Resolution No. 5 documents the second public hearing, finalizes the special assessment 
roll and sets the terms of payment.  This public hearing is designed to allow affected citizens the 

 
 
 
 



opportunity to argue whether or not the amount of their assessment is fair and equitable in relation to 
the benefit they receive from the project.  If, after hearing citizen comment, the council decides 
adjustments need to be made to the assessment roll they may do so.  Alternately, if they feel all the 
assessments are fair and equitable they may pass the resolution as written.   

 
Tonight the council will be holding a public hearing to receive citizen comments regarding the necessity of 
the proposed project.  At the conclusion of the hearing council will consider approval of Resolution No. 3 
authorizing the project to proceed.  Residents that would be affected by the project have been sent a 
notification for the public hearing, a description of the work being proposed, and an estimate of the 
special assessment for their property. 
 
Staff recommends authorization of Resolution No. 3 for the following district: 
 

Special Assessment District No. 2019-10 
Ryan Street, Public Street, from Chipman Street to Cedar Street 



RESOLUTION NO.  
 

AUTHORIZING SPECIAL ASSESSMENT RESOLUTION NO. 3 
ESTABLISHING SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT NO. 2019-10 
RYAN STREET, FROM CHIPMAN STREET TO CEDAR STREET 

FOR STREET RECONSTRUCTION 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council, after due and legal notice, has met and (there being no one to be heard 
regarding / having heard all persons to be affected by) the proposed public improvement more particularly 
hereinafter described; and  
      
WHEREAS, the City Council deems it advisable and necessary to proceed with said public improvement 
as more particularly hereinafter described.  
      
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT:  
          

1. The City Council hereby determines to make and proceed with the following described public 
improvement and to defray a part or the whole cost, as more particularly hereinafter provided, by 
special assessment upon the property specially benefited:   
 

RYAN STREET, A PUBLIC STREET, FROM CHIPMAN STREET TO CEDAR STREET 
STREET RECONSTRUCTION 

 
2. The City Council hereby approves the plans for the aforesaid public improvement as prepared 

and presented by the City Manager and determines the estimated cost of said public 
improvement to be $530,810.40 and approves said estimated cost and determines that the 
estimated life of said public improvement is twenty (20) years.  

 
3. The City Council determines that of said total estimated cost, the sum of $107,385.96 be paid by 

special assessment upon the property specially benefited, as more particularly hereinafter 
described, and that the sum of $423,424.44 of said total estimated cost shall be the obligation of 
the City at large because of benefit to the City at large. 

 
 

4. The City Council hereby designates the following described property as the special assessment 
district upon which the special assessment shall be levied:   
 

Ryan Street, a Public Street, from Chipman Street to Cedar Street  
Street Reconstruction 

 
5. The City Assessor shall prepare a special assessment roll including all lots and parcels of land 

within the special assessment district herein designated, and the Assessor shall assess to each 
such lot or parcel of land such relative portion of the whole sum to be levied against all lands in 
the special assessment district as the benefit to such lot or parcel of land bears to the total 
benefits to all lands in such district.  

 
6. When the Assessor shall have completed the assessment roll, he shall file the special assessment 

roll with the City Clerk for presentation to the City Council.      
 



801

1108 1024
1016 1012 1002 994

800802804806810984988

6
2
4

6
2
8

809813817819821825995100110031011101310191025

1028 1014 1006 952 950 910 906 900 822 814-816 802812

911 903 821

6
0

4
6
0

2

91391591992710031005101310191025

6
1

7

990

916 914 908 904 900 820

5
2

0

100410181024

6
4

5

1104 1102

7
0

2

7
0

1
7
0

7
7
1

5
7
1

9

1120 1100

1109 1105 1103

7
2
0

7
1
8

7
0
6
-7

1
0

11091115

8
0
3 1025 1013

803809813821827905911915-917
1005 1001

715721

6
0

3
6
0

7

726 722

720-730

739 735 731

814

813

975

S
. 

C
E

D
A

R
 S

T
.

S
T
A

T
E

 S
T
.

FLETCHER ST.

W. STEWART ST.

S
. 

C
H

IP
M

A
N

 S
T
.

RYAN ST.

City of Owosso

±0 130 260 390 52065

Feet

Proposed Special Assessment

1501 Street Address Number 1 inch = 165 feet

Legend

City Parcels 2018 Edition

Special Assessment Parcels

Ryan Street from S. Chipman St. to S. Cedar St.



22-Jan-19
RYAN STREET ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE- Resolution #2

DESCRIPTION UNIT  QUANTITY UNIT PRICE AMOUNT
 ELLIGIBLE 
AMOUNT 

 CITY COST
60 PERCENT 

 ASSESSMENT 
AT 40% 

RESIDENTIAL 

 ASSESSMENT 
AT 40% 

COMMERCIAL 
MOBILIZATION, MAX_____________ LSUM 1.00 21,000.00$         21,000.00$         21,000.00$     12,600.00$     8,400.00$             8,400.00$             

DR STRUCTURE, REM EA 11.00 350.00$              3,850.00$           

SEWER, REM, LESS THAN 24 INCH LFT 677.00 10.00$                6,770.00$           

FLOWABLE FILL, 8 INCH LFT 716.00 5.00$                  3,580.00$           

CURB AND GUTTER, REM LFT 2633.00 7.00$                  18,431.00$         6,082.23$       3,649.34$       2,432.89$             2,432.89$             

PAVT, REM SYD 352.00 8.00$                  2,816.00$           2,816.00$       1,689.60$       1,126.40$             1,126.40$             

SIDEWALK, REM SYD 63.00 8.00$                  504.00$              

SUBGRADE UNDERCUTTING, TYPE II CYD 50.00 25.00$                1,250.00$           

EXCAVATION, EARTH CYD 1713.00 8.00$                  13,704.00$         

EMBANKMENT, CIP CYD 209.00 10.00$                2,090.00$           

EROSION CONTROL, INLET PROTECTION, FABRIC DROP EA 14.00 100.00$              1,400.00$           1,400.00$       840.00$          560.00$                560.00$                

MAINTENANCE GRAVEL TON 20.00 25.00$                500.00$              500.00$          300.00$          200.00$                200.00$                

DR STRUCTURE COVER, TEMP LOWERING EA 6.00 250.00$              1,500.00$           1,500.00$       900.00$          600.00$                600.00$                

HMA SURFACE, REM SYD 4574.00 3.00$                  13,722.00$         6,861.00$       4,116.60$       2,744.40$             2,744.40$             

AGGREGATE BASE, 8 INCH, MOD SYD 3905.00 12.00$                46,860.00$         

GEOTEXTILE SEPARATOR SYD 3905.00 2.00$                  7,810.00$           

SEWER TAP, 12 INCH EA 2.00 200.00$              400.00$              

SEWER TAP, 24 INCH EA 1.00 300.00$              300.00$              

SEWER, SDR-26, 10 INCH, TRENCH DET B-MOD LFT 214.00 45.00$                9,630.00$           

SEWER, SDR-26, 12 INCH, TRENCH DET B-MOD LFT 355.00 50.00$                17,750.00$         

SEWER, SDR-26, 24 INCH, TRENCH DET B-MOD LFT 362.00 80.00$                28,960.00$         

DR STRUCTURE COVER, ADJ, CASE 1 EA 6.00 475.00$              2,850.00$           2,850.00$       1,710.00$       1,140.00$             1,140.00$             

DR STRUCTURE COVER, EJ 1060 EA 6.00 600.00$              3,600.00$           3,600.00$       2,160.00$       1,440.00$             1,440.00$             

DR STRUCTURE COVER, EJ 1120 W/ GASKET SEAL EA 5.00 650.00$              3,250.00$           3,250.00$       1,950.00$       1,300.00$             1,300.00$             

DR STRUCTURE COVER, EJ 7000 EA 12.00 700.00$              8,400.00$           8,400.00$       5,040.00$       3,360.00$             3,360.00$             

DR STRUCTURE, 36 INCH DIA. MOD EA 12.00 1,400.00$           16,800.00$         

DR STRUCTURE, 48 INCH DIA. MOD EA 6.00 1,800.00$           10,800.00$         

HMA, 2C@3.0" TON 644.00 75.00$                48,300.00$         48,300.00$     28,980.00$     16,093.56$           19,320.00$           

HMA, 5E3@ 1.5" TON 322.00 85.00$                27,370.00$         27,370.00$     16,422.00$     10,948.00$           10,948.00$           

DRIVEWAY, NONREINF CONC, 6 INCH SYD 664.00 45.00$                29,880.00$         29,880.00$     17,928.00$     11,952.00$           11,952.00$           

Page 1



DESCRIPTION UNIT  QUANTITY UNIT PRICE AMOUNT
 ELLIGIBLE 
AMOUNT 

 CITY COST
60 PERCENT 

 ASSESSMENT 
AT 40% 

RESIDENTIAL 

 ASSESSMENT 
AT 40% 

COMMERCIAL 
DRIVEWAY OPENING, CONC, DET M LFT 45.00 15.00$                675.00$              

CURB AND GUTTER, CONC, DET F4 LFT 2633.00 20.00$                52,660.00$         52,660.00$     31,596.00$     21,064.00$           21,064.00$           

DETECTABLE WARNING SURFACE LFT 30.00 35.00$                1,050.00$           

SIDEWALK RAMP, CONC, 4 INCH SFT 515.00 5.00$                  2,575.00$           

MINOR TRAF DEVICES LSUM 1.00 5,000.00$           5,000.00$           5,000.00$       3,000.00$       2,000.00$             2,000.00$             

BARRICADE, TYPE III, HIGH INTENSITY, FURN & OPER EA 4.00 100.00$              400.00$              

PEDESTRIAN TYPE II BARRICADE, TEMP EA 4.00 150.00$              600.00$              

PLASTIC DRUM, HIGH INTENSITY, FURN & OPER EA 50.00 20.00$                1,000.00$           

SIGN, TYPE B, TEMP, PRISMATIC, FURN & OPER SFT 174.00 5.00$                  870.00$              

TURF ESTABLISHMENT, PERFORMANCE SYD 2487.00 5.00$                  12,435.00$         

VALVE BOX, ADJ EA 5.00 200.00$              1,000.00$           

MISCELLANEOUS WORK ITEMS LSUM 1.00 10,000.00$         10,000.00$         10,000.00$     6,000.00$       4,000.00$             4,000.00$             
SUB TOTALS 442,342.00$       231,469.23$   138,881.54$   89,361.25$           92,587.69$           

ENGINEERING AT 15% ASSESSABLE COST 66,351.30$         34,720.38$     20,832.23$     13,404.19$           13,888.15$           
ADMINISTRATIVE AT 5% ASSESSABLE COST 22,117.10$         11,573.46$     6,944.08$       4,468.06$             4,629.38$             
GRAND TOTALS 530,810.40$       277,763.08$   166,657.85$   107,233.50$         111,105.23$         

Page 2



RYAN STREET - Estimated Assessment Calculations SPECIAL ASSESSMENT ROLL

ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE ASSESSABLE AMOUNT $277,763.08
TOTAL ASSESSABLE FRONT FEET RESIDENTIAL 2248.26
TOTAL ASSESSABLE FRONT FEET COMMERCIAL 99.00
TOTAL ASSESSABLE FRONT FEET 2347.26

CALCULATING ASSESSABLE FRONT FOOT RATE AND AMOUNTS:
PROPERTY TYPE RESIDENTIAL PROPERTY COMMERCIAL PROPERTY TOTAL
TOTAL ELIGIBLE PER TYPE $277,763.08 $277,763.08
CITY SHARE > 60% $170,529.58 $166,657.85
PROPERTY SHARE @ <40% $107,233.50 $111,105.23
ASSESSABLE FRONT FOOT RATE: PROP SHARE/TOTAL FRONT FEET $45.68 $47.33
TOTAL FRONT FEET PER TYPE 2248.26 99.00
TOTAL AMOUNT OF ASSESSMENT PER TYPE: $102,710.72 $4,686.08 $107,396.80

SUMMARY: SPECIAL ASSESSMENT AMOUNTS PER SIDE OF STREET:
NORTH SIDE $53,925.47
SOUTH SIDE $53,460.49
TOTAL SPECIAL ASSESSMENT $107,385.96



RYAN ST FROM CHIPMAN TO CEDAR ESTIMATED SPECIAL ASSESSMENT ROLL

NORTH
ADDRESS STREET PROPERTY OWNER NAME ROLL NUMBER FRONT FOOTAGE CORNER LOT ASSESSABLE FRONT FOOT AMOUNT OF 
NO. DISCOUNT FRONT FEET RATE ASSESSMENT

645 S CHIPMAN MADRIGAL, ELAINE M 113-006-001 78 0.75 58.50 $45.68 $2,672.28 R1
1108 RYAN TISHER, STEVEN R 113-006-005 95.08 1 95.08 $45.68 $4,343.25 R1
1104 RYAN DAWES, JOSEPH M; SEMKE, JESSICA K 113-006-002 66 1 66.00 $45.68 $3,014.88 R1
1102 RYAN ROOT, SAMUEL S & LARINDA S 113-006-003 44 1 44.00 $45.68 $2,009.92 R1
1024 RYAN PIERCE, CLAUDE J 113-002-017 82 1 82.00 $45.68 $3,745.76 R1
1016 RYAN REIDSEMA, BRIAN D & CYNTHIA J 113-002-018 50 1 50.00 $45.68 $2,284.00 R1
1012 RYAN SUGGS, BRIAN S & LYNETTE J 113-002-019 66 1 66.00 $45.68 $3,014.88 R1
1002 RYAN THOMPSON, DORIS E 113-002-020 104.3 1 104.30 $45.68 $4,764.42 R1

994 RYAN ALBRING, BRANDIE 113-002-021 132 1 132.00 $45.68 $6,029.76 R1
990 RYAN ALBRANT, JOHANNA G; WALTON, MELISSA 113-002-022 44 1 44.00 $45.68 $2,009.92 R1
988 RYAN LANE, LILA L 113-002-023 44 1 44.00 $45.68 $2,009.92 R1
984 RYAN FERRIS, CAROL A; DURFEE, LINDA L 113-002-024 143 1 143.00 $45.68 $6,532.24 R1
810 RYAN STOUT, JENNIFER M 113-002-026 66 1 66.00 $45.68 $3,014.88 R1
806 RYAN MACKENZIE, MICHAEL & AMANDA 113-002-027 49.5 1 49.50 $45.68 $2,261.16 R1
804 RYAN FRANTZ, LORI A 113-002-028 49.5 1 49.50 $45.68 $2,261.16 R1
802 RYAN KLCO, JOSPH JR & MARY ELLE 113-002-029 49.5 1 49.50 $45.68 $2,261.16 R1
800 RYAN DANIELS, JEFFERY 113-002-030 49.5 0.75 37.13 $45.68 $1,695.87 R1

1212.38 1180.51 $53,925.47

SOUTH
ADDRESS STREET PROPERTY OWNER NAME ROLL NUMBER FRONT FOOTAGE CORNER LOT ASSESSABLE FRONT FOOT AMOUNT OF 
NO. DISCOUNT FRONT FEET RATE ASSESSMENT

701 S CHIPMAN KEYES, SHERYL L & DAVID A 113-007-001 132 0.75 99.00 $47.33 $4,685.67 B1
1109 RYAN CARPENTER, SEAN 113-007-007 50.25 1 50.25 $45.68 $2,295.42 R1
1105 RYAN SCOTT, MATTHEW C 113-007-008 47.75 1 47.75 $45.68 $2,181.22 R1
1103 RYAN BURL, PHILLIP E & MARIE E 113-007-009 57 1 57.00 $45.68 $2,603.76 R1
1025 RYAN CALLARD, WILLIAM R & LOIS C 113-001-014 66 1 66.00 $45.68 $3,014.88 R1
1019 RYAN HOLLEY, SANDRA K 113-001-013 66 1 66.00 $45.68 $3,014.88 R1
1013 RYAN PARDY, THERESA 113-001-012 66 1 66.00 $45.68 $3,014.88 R1
1011 RYAN KINGSLEY, ANNIE L; MILLER-ALLEY, PAULA A 113-001-011 49.5 1 49.50 $45.68 $2,261.16 R1
1003 RYAN SIMMINGTON LLC 113-001-010 54.75 1 54.75 $45.68 $2,500.98 R1
1001 RYAN BRONSON, DONALD R 113-001-009 47 1 47.00 $45.68 $2,146.96 R1

995 RYAN CALDER, DIANE TRUST 113-001-007 52 1 52.00 $45.68 $2,375.36 R1
975 RYAN CALDER, DONALD R & DIANE M 113-001-008 58 1 58.00 $45.68 $2,649.44 R1
825 RYAN CALLARD, TINA 113-001-006 74 1 74.00 $45.68 $3,380.32 R1
821 RYAN WOOD, GARY & JUNE ET AL 113-001-005 61 1 61.00 $45.68 $2,786.48 R1
819 RYAN SLAMA, DANIEL R & DANIELLE 113-001-004 55 1 55.00 $45.68 $2,512.40 R1
817 RYAN SCOTT, AMANDA N 113-001-003 60 1 60.00 $45.68 $2,740.80 R1
813 RYAN DCT INVESTMENTS LLC 113-001-002 88 1 88.00 $45.68 $4,019.84 R1
809 RYAN BUBLITZ, TRACY 113-001-028 66 1 66.00 $45.68 $3,014.88 R1
801 RYAN HORN, HOWARD J & MARY ANN 113-001-029 66 0.75 49.50 $45.68 $2,261.16 R1

1216.25 1166.75 $53,460.49

TOTAL ASSESSABLE FRONT FOOTAGE 2347.26

PROPERTY
TYPE

PROPERTY
TYPE



RYAN STREET 
ANALYSIS 

 
Following are some important features of the existing Ryan Street: 
 

• Street is classified as a local street. 
• Street is included within current five-year street program plan. 
• Daily traffic volume is about 500 vehicles suggesting it mostly services the street’s residents. 
• Street width is 32’ edge-to-edge plus curb and gutter both sides of street. 
• Parallel parking is allowed on both sides of street. Street paring is for short-term use and 

prohibited for overnight use per city ordinance. 
• Every household along the street has ample off-street parking area. The street parking is for 

sporadic overflow use. 
• Storm sewer is poor and undersized at east end. New storm sewer is recommended. 
• Street condition rating is poor. Curb and gutter is poor. Recommended fix is reconstruction. 

 
Whenever we are at the point of reconstructing a street, we should design the street in accordance with 
our Complete Streets policy (attached). The Complete Streets concept came about from numerous 
studies and opinions of urban planners that suggest oversized streets (width) create an unhealthy 
environment to the neighborhood. They hypothesize that wider low volume streets promote speeding and 
unsafe conditions for residents, especially pedestrians. Complete Streets requires us to evaluate and 
blend the proposed street to the surrounding neighborhood. 
 
For Ryan Street, a proposed 26’-wide street is recommended. The proposed road will yet allow sufficient 
space for coexistence of a parked vehicle and two travel lanes. One parking lane (recommend south side 
but can be changed to north side) will satisfy street parking needs for the neighborhood. Residents will 
benefit from the added green space in place of pavement. Safety enhancements of a narrowed street will 
be realized. The City will realize some benefits with a 26’-wide Ryan Street; a road that better fits with its 
Complete Streets policy; enhancing quality to the neighborhood, preserving landscape features (trees) 
that otherwise may be injured by the street work, and overall maintenance cost. Difference in construction 
cost between a 26’-wide and 32’ wide Ryan Street is about $50,000.00. Should City Council decide on a 
32’-wide street with parking on both sides, then that additional cost should be considered a luxury and 
question then is whether it should be assessed at 100% towards the property owner. 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 99-2011 
 

SUPPORTING THE MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION (MDOT)  
COMPLETE STREETS INITIATIVE  

AS OUTLINED IN PUBLIC ACT 134, AND PUBLIC ACT 135, OF 2010 
 
WHEREAS, complete streets mean roadways planned, designed, and constructed to provide appropriate 
access to all legal users in a manner that promotes safe and efficient movement of people and goods, 
whether by car, truck, transit, assistive device, foot, or bicycle; 
 
WHEREAS, a complete streets policy means a document that provides guidance for the planning, design, 
and construction of roadways or an interconnected network of transportation facilities being constructed 
or reconstructed and designated for a transportation purpose that promotes complete streets and meets 
all of the following requirements: 
 

(i) is sensitive to the needs of the city of Owosso; 
(ii)  considers the functional class of the roadway and project costs and allows for appropriate 

exemptions; 
(iii) considers the varying mobility needs of all legal users of the roadway, of all ages and 

abilities; 
 
WHEREAS, increasing walking and bicycling offers improved health benefits for the population and 
makes Owosso a more livable community; 
 
WHEREAS, the Michigan legislature has passed complete streets legislation that requires the Michigan 
Department of Transportation and local governments to consider all users in transportation-related 
projects; 
 
WHEREAS, complete streets support economic growth and community stability by providing accessible 
and efficient connections between home, school, work, recreation, and retail destinations by improving 
pedestrian and vehicular environments throughout communities; 
 
WHEREAS, complete streets enhance safe walking and bicycling options for school-age children, in 
recognition of the national Safe Routes to Schools program; and 
 
WHEREAS, the city of Owosso recognizes the importance of street infrastructure and modifications such 
as sidewalks, crosswalks, shared-use paths, bicycle lanes, signage, and accessible curb ramps that 
enable safe, convenient, and comfortable travel for all users; 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the city council of the city of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: to the extent feasible, the city of Owosso will incorporate complete streets design 
considerations and practices as a routine part of infrastructure planning and 
implementation.  

 
SECOND: the city of Owosso supports the continued development of Owosso's master plan, parks 

and recreation plan, and capital improvements plan and program that support ease of 
use, safety, and accessibility for all users within the city of Owosso. 

 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing document is a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the 
Owosso City Council at the regular meeting of June 6, 2011 and which has not been rescinded or 
modified in any way whatsoever and is at present in full force and effect. 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Amy K. Kirkland, City Clerk 

AKKirkland
CitySeal-Trans





 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 

301 W. MAIN    OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958    WWW.CI.OWOSSO.MI.US 
 
 

 
DATE: January 28, 2019 
 
TO: Owosso City Council 
  
FROM: Glenn Chinavare, Director of Public Services & Utilities 
 
SUBJECT: Setting Public Hearing for Special Assessment Roll for Williams Street Rehabilitation 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Approval of Resolution No. 4 which sets the second public hearing for the Williams Street Rehabilitation 
Project. 
 
 
BACKGROUND:    
 
This public hearing is intended to provide affected residents with the opportunity to comment regarding 
their individual assessments.  
 
Step Four/Resolution No. 4 takes place after the bids are received.  Estimated assessment amounts are 
adjusted if necessary to reflect the actual cost as dictated by the bids received.  A second public hearing 
is set to allow property owners to comment on their particular assessment.  Each property owner is sent a 
second notice containing the date and time of the public hearing and the amount of the proposed 
assessment for their property.  City Council sets the second public hearing at its February 4, 2019 
meeting.  
 
Step Five/Resolution No. 5 documents the second public hearing, finalizes the special assessment roll 
and sets the terms of payment.  This public hearing is designed to allow affected citizens the opportunity 
to argue whether or not the amount of their assessment is fair and equitable in relation to the benefit they 
receive from the project.  If, after hearing citizen comment, the council decides adjustments need to be 
made to the assessment roll they may do so.  Alternately, if it is felt all the assessments are fair and 
equitable the resolution may be passed as written.  
 
Tonight the council will be considering Resolution No. 4 for the proposed district as a part of the Consent 
Agenda.  Staff recommends authorization of Resolution No. 4 setting a public hearing for Tuesday, 
February 19, 2019 to receive citizen comment regarding the proposed special assessment roll for the 
following public improvement: 
 

Williams Street, a Public Street, from Shiawassee Street to Washington Street 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachment(s): Williams Street Resolution No. 4 
  Special Assessment Roll 

 
 
 
 



  Reso No. 4 

RESOLUTION NO.  
 

WILLIAMS STREET 
FROM SHIAWASSEE STREET TO WASHINGTON STREET 

SPECIAL ASSESSMENT RESOLUTION NO. 4 
 
WHEREAS, the Assessor has prepared a special assessment roll for the purpose of specially assessing 
that portion of the cost of the public improvements more particularly hereinafter described to the 
properties specially benefited by said public improvement, and the same has been presented to the 
Council by the City Clerk.      
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT:  
          
1.   Said special assessment roll is hereby accepted and shall be filed in the office of the City Clerk for 

public examination.  
          
2.   The Council shall meet at the Owosso City Hall, Owosso, Michigan at 7:30 o’clock p.m., on Tuesday, 

February 19, 2019 for the purpose of hearing all persons interested in said special assessment roll 
and reviewing the same.  

          
3.   The City Clerk is directed to publish the notice of said hearings once in the Argus Press, the official 

newspaper of the City of Owosso, not less than ten (10) days prior to said hearing and shall further 
cause notice of said hearing to be sent by first class mail to each owner of the property subject to 
assessment, as indicated by the records in the City Assessor’s office as shown on the general tax 
rolls of the City, at least ten  (10) days before the time of said hearing, said notice to be mailed to the 
addresses shown on said general tax rolls of the City.  

          
4.   The notice of said hearing to be published and mailed shall be in substantially the following form:  
      

NOTICE OF HEARING 
TO REVIEW SPECIAL ASSESSMENT ROLL 

CITY OF OWOSSO, COUNTY OF SHIAWASSEE, MICHIGAN 
     
TO THE OWNERS OF THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED PROPERTY:  
          

WILLIAMS STREET, A PUBLIC STREET, FROM SHIAWASSEE STREET TO WASHINGTON 
STREET 
      

TAKE NOTICE that a Special Assessment roll has been prepared for the purpose of defraying the Special 
Assessment district’s share of the cost of the following described improvements:   
 

STREET REHABILITATION 
 
The said Special Assessment roll is on file for public examination with the City Clerk and any objections to 
said Special Assessment roll must be filed in writing with the City Clerk prior to the close of the hearing to 
review said Special Assessment roll.    
   
TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that appearance and protest at this hearing is required in order to appeal the 
amount of the special assessment to the State Tax Tribunal if an appeal should be desired.  A property 
owner or party in interest, his or her agent, may appear in person at the hearing to protest the special 
assessment or may file his or her appearance by letter and his or her personal appearance shall not be 
required.  The property owner or any person having an interest in the property subject to the proposed 
special assessments may file a written appeal of the special assessment with the State Tax Tribunal 
within thirty days after confirmation of the special assessment roll if that special assessment was 
protested at this hearing.  
 



  Reso No. 4 

TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that the City Council will meet at the Owosso City Hall, Owosso, Michigan at 
7:30 p.m. on Tuesday, February 19, 2019 for the purpose of reviewing said special assessment roll and 
for the purpose of considering all objections to said roll submitted in writing.      



107

208

415

419

213

209

219
221-223

217-

309

305

502506

209

215

221

508 502

511

515

521

219

208

521 509 505 501 415 409 405 401 327 321 317 303-311

518

514

522

524
522
518

116118

516

300

327-329

319

311-
309

114
301-305

331

329

332-
215

330
323

321
322
318

312

311

315

307
308

210
301

217-227
113

224

211

507 503

515

527

319-331 305 303

414 417

407

318 310
401-403

219 215 207-209 205

413-415
414-416

409

520-22

601

302320

520

526

412 408 402 340

217

208-210 207 122-324

404-410

420

117

429

415

405-407

401
110

426

109

404

405 403

417

402-404408416422-424

326

210

405

408

402 403

421

320

524

420-422

517

406 402

207

521

N. BALL ST.N. WATER ST.

PINE ST.

W. OLIVER ST.

N. WATER ST.CASTLE DR.

CURWOOD
W. MASON ST.

W. WILLIAMS ST.

N. SHIAWASSEE ST.

JR HIGH

SCHOOL

GROUNDS

OWOSSO

0 100 200

Feet

AKKirkland
Typewritten Text
SHIAWASSEE ST.

AKKirkland
Typewritten Text

AKKirkland
Typewritten Text

AKKirkland
Typewritten Text
WASHINGTON ST.



SPECIAL ASSESSMENT ROLL
DISTRICT NO. 2019-14

WILLIAMS STREET

WILLIAMS STREET FROM SHIAWASSE TO WASHINGTON SPECIAL ASSESSMENT ROLL RESO #4

NORTH SIDE
ADDRESS STREET ROLL NUMBER FRONT CORNER LOT ASSESSABLE FRONT FOOT AMOUNT OF ZONING
NO. FOOTAGE DISCOUNT FRONT FEET RATE ASSESSMENT TYPE

508 WILLIAMS 470-001-006 130.62 1 130.62 $46.41 $6,062.07 RM-1
502 WILLIAMS 470-001-005 130.62 0.75 97.965 $46.41 $4,546.56 RM-1

422-424 WILLIAMS 470-002-010 61 0.75 45.75 $46.41 $2,123.26 RM-1
416 WILLIAMS 470-002-009 61 1 61 $46.41 $2,831.01 RM-1
408 WILLIAMS 470-002-008 56 1 56 $46.41 $2,598.96 RM-1

402-404 WILLIAMS 470-002-007 66 0.75 49.5 $46.41 $2,297.30 RM-1
318 WILLIAMS 470-003-007 122 0.75 91.5 $46.41 $4,246.52 RM-1
310 WILLIAMS 470-003-008 61 1 61 $46.41 $2,831.01 RM-1
401 N WATER 470-003-009 61 0.75 45.75 $46.41 $2,123.26 RM-1
402 N WATER 470-004-011 122 0.75 91.5 $46.41 $4,246.52 RM-1
210 WILLIAMS 470-004-008 32 1 32 $46.41 $1,485.12 RM-1
403 N BALL 470-004-012 94 0.75 70.5 $46.41 $3,271.91 RM-1

404-410 N BALL 470-005-001 122 0.75 91.5 $57.70 $5,279.55 OS-1
110 WILLIAMS 470-005-007 56 1 56 $57.70 $3,231.20 OS-1
401 N WASHINGTON 470-005-008 66 0.75 49.5 $57.70 $2,856.15 OS-1

1241.24 1030.085 $50,030.37

SOUTH SIDE
ADDRESS STREET ROLL NUMBER FRONT CORNER LOT ASSESSABLE FRONT FOOT AMOUNT OF ZONING
NO. FOOTAGE DISCOUNT FRONT FEET RATE ASSESSMENT TYPE

521 WILLIAMS 470-037-001 66 1 66 $46.41 $3,063.06 RM-2
509 WILLIAMS 470-037-002 66 1 66 $46.41 $3,063.06 RM-2
505 WILLIAMS 470-037-003 78 1 78 $46.41 $3,619.98 RM-2
501 WILLIAMS 470-037-004 65 1 65 $46.41 $3,016.65 RM-2
415 WILLIAMS 470-037-005 55 1 55 $46.41 $2,552.55 RM-2
409 WILLIAMS 470-038-003 115.5 1 115.5 $46.41 $5,360.36 RM-2
405 WILLIAMS 470-038-004 57.75 1 57.75 $46.41 $2,680.18 RM-2
401 WILLIAMS 470-038-005 57.75 1 57.75 $46.41 $2,680.18 RM-2
327 WILLIAMS 470-038-006 99 1 99 $46.41 $4,594.59 RM-2
321 WILLIAMS 470-038-007 82.5 1 82.5 $46.41 $3,828.83 RM-2   
317 WILLIAMS 470-038-008 43.7 1 43.7 $46.41 $2,028.12 RM-2

303-311 WILLIAMS 470-038-009 138.8 0.75 104.1 $46.41 $4,831.28 RM-2
332-334 N WATER 470-013-003 93 0.75 69.75 $57.70 $4,024.58 B-3

215 WILLIAMS 470-013-004 33 1 33 $57.70 $1,904.10 B-3
331 N BALL 470-013-001 122 0.75 91.5 $57.70 $5,279.55 B-3

327-329 N WASHINGTON 470-012-001 264 0.75 198 $57.70 $11,424.60 OS-1
1437 1282.55 $63,951.65

SEE SHEET TWO FOR EXPLANATION OF ASSESSMENT ROLL



POST BID ASSESSMENT CALCULATIONS
WILLIAMS STREET

RESO #4

ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE ASSESSABLE AMOUNT $300,331.50
TOTAL ASSESSABLE FRONT FEET 2312.64

CALCULATING ASSESSABLE FRONT FOOT RATE AND AMOUNTS:

PROPERTY TYPE RESIDENTIAL PROPERTY COMMERCIAL PROPERTY TOTAL
CITY SHARE > 60% $200,163.25 $200,163.25
PROPERTY SHARE @ <40% $107,329.40 $133,442.17
TOTAL $307,492.65 $333,605.42
ASSESSABLE FRONT FOOT RATE $46.41 $57.70
TOTAL FRONT FEET PER TYPE 1723.39 589.25
TOTAL AMOUNT OF ASSESSMENT PER TYPE: $79,982.31 $34,000.52 $113,982.83

TOTAL ASSESSMENT AMOUNTS PER SIDE OF STREET:

NORTH SIDE $50,030.37
SOUTH SIDE $63,951.65
TOTAL BOTH SIDES $113,982.02

WILLIAMS STREET FROM SHIAWASSEE TO WASHINGTON SPECIAL ASSESSMENT ROLL



ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE - POST BID
WILLIAMS STREET

24-Jan-19
WILLIAMS STREET ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE - POST BID, RESO #4 ASSESSMENT ASSESSMENT

WORK ITEM UNIT WILLIAMS UNIT PRICE AMOUNT ELLIGIBLE CITY COST AT 40% AT 40%
QUANTITIES AMOUNT 60 PERCENT RESIDENTIAL COMMERCIAL

MOBILIZATION, MAX_____________ LSUM 0.91 32,972.00$         30,004.52$         30,004.52$     18,002.71$     12,001.81$     12,001.81$           
DR STRUCTURE, REM EA 26 300.00$              7,800.00$           
SEWER, REM, LESS THAN 24 INCH LFT 1725 10.00$                17,250.00$         
CURB AND GUTTER, REM LFT 1005 4.00$                  4,020.00$           4,020.00$       2,412.00$       1,608.00$       1,608.00$             
PAVT, REM SYD 235 5.00$                  1,175.00$           1,175.00$       705.00$          470.00$          470.00$                
SIDEWALK, REM SYD 436 6.00$                  2,616.00$           
SUBGRADE UNDERCUTTING, TYPE II CYD 150 25.00$                3,750.00$           
MACHINE GRADING, MOD STA 31 900.00$              27,900.00$         
EROSION CONTROL, INLET PROTECTION, FABRIC DROP EA 20 85.00$                1,700.00$           1,700.00$       1,020.00$       680.00$          680.00$                
EROSION CONTROL, SILT FENCE FT 200 2.00$                  400.00$              400.00$          240.00$          160.00$          160.00$                
MAINTENANCE GRAVEL TON 255 10.00$                2,550.00$           2,550.00$       1,530.00$       1,020.00$       1,020.00$             
APPROACH, CL II, LM CYD 10 40.00$                400.00$              400.00$          240.00$          160.00$          160.00$                
SANITARY SERV CONFLICT EA 5 1,000.00$           5,000.00$           
DR STRUCTURE COVER, TEMP LOWERING EA 7 200.00$              1,400.00$           1,400.00$       840.00$          560.00$          560.00$                
HMA SURFACE, REM SYD 5160 4.00$                  20,640.00$         20,640.00$     12,384.00$     8,256.00$       8,256.00$             
SAWCUTTING LFT 200 3.00$                  600.00$              
AGGREGATE BASE, 6 INCH, MOD SYD 1509 14.00$                21,126.00$         
AGGREGATE BASE, 8 INCH, MOD SYD 0 15.25$                -$                    
AGGREGATE BASE, 9 INCH, MOD SYD 3650 16.00$                58,400.00$         
GEOTEXTILE SEPARATOR SYD 5159 1.50$                  7,738.50$           
SEWER, SDR-26, 10 INCH, TRENCH DET B-MOD LFT 345 45.00$                15,525.00$         
SEWER, SDR-26, 12 INCH, TRENCH DET B-MOD LFT 231 50.00$                11,550.00$         
SEWER, SDR-26, 15 INCH, TRENCH DET B-MOD LFT 32 59.00$                1,888.00$           
SEWER, SDR-26, 18 INCH, TRENCH DET B-MOD LFT 10 65.00$                650.00$              
SEWER, SDR-26, 24 INCH, TRENCH DET B-MOD LFT 872 90.00$                78,480.00$         
SEWER, SDR-26, 30 INCH, TRENCH DET A-MOD LFT 145 145.00$              21,025.00$         
SEWER, SDR-26, 30 INCH, TRENCH DET B-MOD LFT 507 130.00$              65,910.00$         
SEWER BULKHEAD, 12 INCH EACH 6 200.00$              1,200.00$           
SEWER BULKHEAD, 15 INCH EACH 2 200.00$              400.00$              
SEWER BULKHEAD, 18 INCH EACH 3 200.00$              600.00$              
DR STRUCTURE TAP, 10 INCH EACH 3 750.00$              2,250.00$           
DR STRUCTURE TAP, 12 INCH EACH 1 800.00$              800.00$              
DR STRUCTURE COVER, ADJ, CASE 1 EACH 8 450.00$              3,600.00$           3,600.00$       2,160.00$       1,440.00$       1,440.00$             
DR STRUCTURE COLLAR, MODIFIED EACH 17 650.00$              11,050.00$         
DR STRUCTURE COVER, EJ 1060 EA 13 550.00$              7,150.00$           7,150.00$       4,290.00$       2,860.00$       2,860.00$             
DR STRUCTURE COVER, EJ 1120 W/ GASKET SEAL EA 5 600.00$              3,000.00$           3,000.00$       1,800.00$       1,200.00$       1,200.00$             
DR STRUCTURE COVER, EJ 7000 EA 14 725.00$              10,150.00$         10,150.00$     6,090.00$       4,060.00$       4,060.00$             



ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE - POST BID
WILLIAMS STREET

WILLIAMS STREET ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE - POST BID, RESO #4 ASSESSMENT ASSESSMENT
WORK ITEM UNIT WILLIAMS UNIT PRICE AMOUNT ELLIGIBLE CITY COST AT 40% AT 40%

QUANTITIES AMOUNT 60 PERCENT RESIDENTIAL COMMERCIAL
DR STRUCTURE, 36 INCH DIA. MOD EA 11 1,500.00$           16,500.00$         
DR STRUCTURE, 48 INCH DIA. MOD EA 8 1,950.00$           15,600.00$         
DR STRUCTURE, 60 INCH DIA. MOD EA 7 3,000.00$           21,000.00$         
DR STRUCTURE, 72 INCH DIA. MOD EA 1 6,000.00$           6,000.00$           
DR STRUCTURE, ADD DEPTH, 48 INCH, 8'-15' DEPTH FT 4 -$                    -$                    
DR STRUCTURE, ADD DEPTH, 60 INCH, 8'-15' DEPTH FT 18 -$                    -$                    
DR STRUCTURE, ADD DEPTH, 72 INCH, 8'-15' DEPTH FT 3 -$                    -$                    
CULV END SECT, METAL, 30 INCH EACH 1 -$                    -$                    
RIPRAP, HEAVY, LM CYD 10 125.00$              1,250.00$           
HAND PATCHING TON 10 115.00$              1,150.00$           
HMA, 2C@ 4.5" TON 1405 88.00$                123,640.00$       123,640.00$   74,184.00$     27,695.36$     49,456.00$           
HMA, 5E3@ 1.5" TON 469 90.00$                42,210.00$         42,210.00$     25,326.00$     16,884.00$     16,884.00$           
HMA APPROACH TON 15 115.00$              1,725.00$           1,725.00$       1,035.00$       690.00$          690.00$                
CEMENT TON 2 250.00$              500.00$              500.00$          300.00$          200.00$          200.00$                
DRIVEWAY, NONREINF CONC, 6 INCH SYD 165 45.00$                7,425.00$           
CURB AND GUTTER, CONC, DET F4, MOD LFT 1005 20.00$                20,100.00$         20,100.00$     12,060.00$     8,040.00$       8,040.00$             
DETECTABLE WARNING SURFACE LFT 145 70.00$                10,150.00$         
SIDEWALK RAMP, CONC, 4 INCH SFT 2465 6.00$                  14,790.00$         
SIDEWALK, CONC, 4 INCH SFT 1075 4.50$                  4,837.50$           
SIDEWALK, CONC, 6 INCH SFT 415 5.50$                  2,282.50$           
MINOR TRAF DEVICES LSUM 0.91 4,000.00$           3,640.00$           3,640.00$       2,184.00$       1,456.00$       1,456.00$             
BARRICADE, TYPE III, HIGH INTENSITY, FURN & OPER EA 8 60.00$                480.00$              
PEDESTRIAN TYPE II BARRICADE, TEMP EA 20 60.00$                1,200.00$           
LIGHTED ARROW, TYPE C, FURN AND OPER EA 2 400.00$              800.00$              
PLASTIC DRUM, HIGH INTENSITY, FURN & OPER EA 80 11.00$                880.00$              
SIGN, TYPE B, TEMP, PRISMATIC, FURN & OPER SFT 450 4.25$                  1,912.50$           
TURF ESTABLISHMENT, PERFORMANCE SYD 1492 5.00$                  7,460.00$           
TREE, REM, 6 INCH TO 18 INCH EACH 2 800.00$              1,600.00$           
VALVE BOX, ADJ EA 4 175.00$              700.00$              
ABANDONED GAS MAIN CONFLICT EA 10 250.00$              2,500.00$           
SUB TOTALS 760,030.52$       278,004.52$   166,802.71$   89,441.17$     111,201.81$         

ENGINEERING AT 15% ASSESSABLE COST 114,004.58$       41,700.68$     25,020.41$     13,416.18$     16,680.27$           
ADMINISTRATIVE AT 5% ASSESSABLE COST 38,001.53$         13,900.23$     8,340.14$       4,472.06$       5,560.09$             
GRAND TOTALS 912,036.62$       333,605.42$   200,163.25$   107,329.40$   133,442.17$         



 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 

301 W. MAIN    OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958    WWW.CI.OWOSSO.MI.US 
 
   

 
 
DATE: January 31, 2019 
 
TO: City Council 
  
FROM: Glenn M. Chinavare, Director of Public Services & Utilities 
 
SUBJECT: Purchase of Push-Pull Camera - Water Filtration Facility 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Authorization to purchase one Verisight Pro Camera from Bell Equipment of Lake Orion, Michigan for use in 
televising and inspection of water piping and process equipment. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The requested equipment is eligible for Risk Avoidance Program (RAP) grant funding from our insurance 
carrier Michigan Municipal Risk Management Authority (MMRMA).  This equipment is eligible for a 50% 
grant up to $20,000.00.  The Verisight Pro Camera is available at a cost of $23,500.00 from Bell Equipment.  
This is the same type of camera purchased in 2016 for wastewater televising and inspection operations, also 
approved by MMRMA for 50% reimbursement with RAP grant funds. MMRMA reviews RAP requests by 
committee quarterly each calendar year.    
 
Waiver of competitive bid process in accordance with the city of Owosso purchasing policy is hereby requested.  
This particular equipment is specialized for its intended application, and is the only one of its type staff has 
found to be acceptable for vertical and horizontal turns through process equipment piping at the treatment 
works.   
 
FISCAL IMPACTS:  
 
Initial cost $23,500.00.  Net cost after RAP funding $11,750.00.  Equipment expense to be charged to the Water 
Fund Account.  
 
Document originated by: 
   
Glenn M. Chinavare, Director of Public Services & Utilities 
 
 
Attachment: (1) Resolution 
                     (2) Bell Equipment Quote 
                     (3) RAP Application 
                     (4) MMRMA application acceptance  

 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO.  
 

AUTHORIZING PURCHASE OF CAMERA EQUIPMENT  
FROM BELL EQUIPMENT COMPANY OF LAKE ORION, MICHIGAN  

FOR USE AT THE WATER TREATMENT FACILITY 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, has identified a need for the purchase of 
a Verisight Pro video inspection camera from Bell Equipment Company of Lake Orion, Michigan for use at 
the Water Treatment Facility and other drinking water infrastructure; and 
 
WHEREAS, purchase of this equipment will significantly assist in the identification of systemic 
problems in piping systems to avoid future claims and/or more expensive repairs when discovered, as well 
as aid in complying with the Michigan Department of Environmental Quality (MDEQ) Asset Management 
Program; and 
 
WHEREAS, waiver of competitive bidding process is hereby requested as the selected equipment is 
specialized for its intended application, and is the only one of its type staff has found to be acceptable for 
vertical and horizontal turns through process equipment piping at the treatment works; and 
 
WHEREAS, the purchase of this equipment is eligible for 50% reimbursement from the City’s insurance 
carrier Michigan Municipal Risk Management Authority, to be considered at the Membership Committee’s 
next meeting on March 6, 2019. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that:  
 

FIRST: The city of Owosso has heretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the 
public interest to procure one 330’ Verisight Pro Plus with pan & tilt camera from Bell 
Equipment Company for use at the Water Treatment Facility.  

 
SECOND: The accounts payable department is authorized to submit payment to Bell Equipment 

Company in the amount of $23,500.00 plus shipping and handling of $300.00 for a total 
of $23,800.00. 

 
THIRD: The above expenses shall be paid from account no. 591-901-977.000.  

 





*MMRMA will email confirmation of receipt and date of application review. If you do not receive this information, please check with 
MMRMA to ensure your application was received.

Portable Pipeline Video Camera

City of Owosso

Public Services

301 W. Main Street - Ososso, MI 48867

Glenn M. Chinavare, Director of Public Servoces

989-725-0555 glenn.chinavare@ci.owosso.mi.us

Cheryl Grice

989-725-0575 cheryl.grice@ci.owosso.mi.us

Cheryl Grice

February 2019 On going

The video camera will be used for drinking water piping applications only, to inspect process piping at the
Water Treatment Facility as well as water distribution mains in the community.

PHYSICAL TREATMENT PLANT OPERATIONS: Treated water goes through a series of processes before being
pumped into the distribution system. Lime, CO2, and chlorine are the primary chemical treatments used within the
treatment process. Lime collects and coats the interior of process piping (much like an arterial blockage), and impacts
the ability to pump required volumes of drinking water to customers on demand. These piping arrangements need
annual inspection to determine interior diameters and potential restrictions, that would require complex contract
services to remove these deposits.

CO2 is used for adjusting the Ph of process water. CO2 can have an aggressive/corrosive impact on water
characteristics, and therefore these same piping arrangements must be examined inside and out to evaluate corrosion.

The inability to deliver water in accordance with municipal agreements, could result in litigation for just cause. An
internal piping rupture could shut down the plant operations and/or create a life threatening situation should an
employee be near the piping at time of rupture. At present, the 5 million gallon per day plant is only able to pump about
1.8 million gallons per day with optimum treatment and up to 2.7 million gallons per day with limited treatment.

WATER DISTRIBUTION SYSTEMS: Distribution piping systems are very vulnerable to poor water quality issues
and construction errors. In addition, the State of Michigan Department of Environmental Quality began mandating all
municipal water supply providers implement asset management plans to maintain and protect resources for producing
and delivering drinking water. These new regulations have created the requirement to prove the implementation of
asset management practices and to take a more aggressive approach to documenting the same.

Video inspections of new water mains laid (but not yet energized with water) can identify debris in the pipe that would
interfere with regulated disinfection processes as well as private property water services blockages from this same
debris if gone undetected. The video inspection would also identify separation of joints and/or poor fusing of joints
during a directional boring and pull operation.

The video camera would also be used to enter existing water mains to determine interior condition, in response to
water quality complaints, location of hard to find breakage, and to determine replacement or cleaning as an alternative
to a costly remove and replace.

1. Video inspect all physical treatment plant internal process piping (16 to 20 inch diameter) to identify
extent of blockage and or restrictions, and develop bid specifications for the immediate cleaning and/or
replacement of problem piping sections.
2. Perform a follow-up video inspection on internal physical plant piping in one year to determine the
frequency required for future inspections and/or contracted cleaning.
3. Inspect sections of water main having low chlorine residuals and/or water quality complaints to
determine reason of poor quality water and extent of contributing sediment restrictions.
4. Inspect directional bore water main processes to verify structural integrity of pipe.



No.

The city of Owosso provides drinking water distribution system maintenance to:
City of Owosso residents and industry
City of Corunna
Owosso Charter Township
Caledonia Charter Township

None.

Reference attached quote for equipment.
MDEQ Letter



Organization:  Amount:

(include grant money from other organizations)

1. Supporting documentation including quotes, bids, invoices, meeting minutes, or other information
further supporting the budget MUST be attached.

2. Large project funding requests should include an itemized list of budget expenses that cross-
reference supporting attachments.

3. MMRMA requires at least 50% contribution by the member municipality (not including funds
received from other sources such as community foundations and other grants).

Cara Kowal, Manager of RM Services
Email: ckowal@mmrma.org
Fax: 734-513-0318
Mail:  14001 Merriman Road 

Livonia, MI  48154 

$23,500.00

Water Fund $11,750.00

$11,750.00

$11,750.00

Cheryl Grice Director of Finance

January 11, 2019



 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
  

301 W MAIN  ∙   OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958 ∙   WWW.CI .OWOSSO.MI .US  
  

 
 
 

 
DATE: January 31, 2019 
 
TO: Owosso City Council 
  
FROM:  Glenn Chinavare, Director of Public Services & Utilities  
 
SUBJECT:  Purchase of Pickup Trucks - MiDeal State Contract & Macomb County Contract #71-15 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Approval to purchase two (2) each pickup trucks from Signature Ford of Owosso, Michigan, and waiver of the 
competitive bidding process in accordance with the city of Owosso Purchasing Policy to take advantage of 
MiDeal State Contract competitive pricing. 
  
BACKGROUND:  
  
The Fleet Motor Pool will purchase two (2) new pickup trucks and replace two older vehicles having expended 
their useful service life as follows: 
 

• New 2019 F-150 4 X 2 Pickup (base price plus accessories)………………………….$35,380.00  
 Replaces Unit No. E-01 2001 Dodge Dakota in fair to poor condition 

                                                                                                     
• New 2019 Ford F-250 4 X 4 Pickup (base price plus accessories)……………………$33,109.00 

 Replaces Unit No. 309 - 1997 F-250 in poor condition   
           
Both vehicles to be purchased through State of Michigan Contract Number: 071B7700180, which expires 
November 30, 2022.   
 
FISCAL IMPACTS:  
 
Two (2) each pickups from Signature Ford totaling $68,489.00, plus additional costs estimated at $5,000.00 to 
cover transportation & delivery expenses and unplanned configuration changes.  Funds will be expended from 
the Fleet Motor Pool Replacement Account 661-901-979.000.  
 
 Attachments: (1) Resolution 
           (2) Signature Ford Contract Price  
          (3) MiDeal Contract  



RESOLUTION NO.  
 

AUTHORIZING PURCHASE OF FLEET VEHICLES (PICKUPS) 
FROM OWOSSO MOTORS, INC. D/B/A SIGNATURE FORD LINCOLN MERCURY 

UTILIZING CONTRACT # 071B7700180 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, has budgeted from the Fleet Motor Pool 
Replacement Fund for the replacement of two pickup trucks used for the maintenance of streets and 
grounds, and 
 
WHEREAS, existing pickup trucks No. 309 & E-01 having expended their useful life and are too costly to 
continue maintaining, and 
 
WHEREAS, City Code Section 2-345(3) provides for an exception to competitive bidding when the best 
interest of the city would be served by jointly purchasing with another governmental unit, and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso desires to purchase two replacement pickup trucks, and it is in the best 
interest of the City to utilize State of Michigan Contract No. 071B7700180/Macomb County Contracts 71-
15 & 21-18 held by Owosso Motors, Inc. d/b/a Signature Ford Lincoln Mercury, for said purchase; and  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that:  
 

FIRST: The City of Owosso has heretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the 
public interest to purchase the following vehicles from Signature Ford Lincoln Mercury 
using State of Michigan Contract No. 071B7700180 and priced according to the Macomb 
County Contract stated: 

 
a. One Ford F150 4x2 Regular Cab Pickup with 6.5’ box, via Macomb County Contract 

71-15 in the amount of $35,380.00 
b. One Ford F250 4x4 Crew Cab Pickup with 6.75’ box, via Macomb County Contract 

21-18 in the amount of $33,109.00 
 
SECOND: The Director of Public Services is hereby instructed and authorized to sign any necessary 

documents to complete said purchase. 
 
THIRD: The accounts payable department is authorized to submit payment to Owosso Motors, 

Inc. d/b/a Signature Ford Lincoln Mercury in the amount of $68,844.00, plus contingency 
funds in the amount of $5,000.00 for transportation & delivery expenses and unplanned 
configuration changes for a total of $73,489.00. 

 
FOURTH: The above expenses shall be paid from account no. 661-901-979.000.  

 

















STATE OF MICHIGAN
ENTERPRISE PROCUREMENT
Department of Technology, Management, and Budget
525 W. ALLEGAN ST., LANSING, MICHIGAN 48913
P.O. BOX 30026 LANSING, MICHIGAN 48909

CONTRACT CHANGE NOTICE
Change Notice Number 2

to
071B7700180Contract Number 

$2,000,001.00

August 1, 2017 November 30, 2022

VEHICLES - PATROL, PASSENGER, TRUCKS AND VANS

November 30, 2022

INITIAL AVAILABLE OPTIONS EXPIRATION DATE BEFORE 
CHANGE(S) NOTED BELOW

1 - 2 Year

PAYMENT TERMS DELIVERY TIMEFRAME

ALTERNATE PAYMENT OPTIONS EXTENDED PURCHASING

 P-Card                                 Direct Voucher (DV)                  Other  Yes                  No
MINIMUM DELIVERY REQUIREMENTS

DESCRIPTION OF CHANGE NOTICE
OPTION LENGTH OF OPTION EXTENSION LENGTH OF EXTENSION REVISED EXP. DATE

November 30, 2022

CURRENT VALUE VALUE OF CHANGE NOTICE ESTIMATED AGGREGATE CONTRACT VALUE
$0.00 $2,000,001.00

Effective 10/01/2017, the following amendment is hereby incorporated into the contract. 2018 model year vehicles have
been awarded per attached Schedule D - Pricing. All other terms, conditions, specifications and pricing remain the same. Per 
agency request, and DTMB Procurement approval.

poyers@Michigan.gov

Scott Poyer

Yvon Dufour

bcampbell@signatureautogroup.com

Bill Campbell

Owosso, MI 48867

Owosso Motors Inc./dba Signature Ford

*******1557

888-923-5338 229

1960 East Main Street

(517) 284-6996

SW

517-284-6448

INITIAL EXPIRATION DATEINITIAL EFFECTIVE DATE

DTMB

DESCRIPTION 

dufoury@michigan.gov

CONTRACT SUMMARY



 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 

301 W. MAIN    OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958    WWW.CI.OWOSSO.MI.US 
 
   

 
DATE: January 28, 2019 
 
TO: Owosso City Council 
  
FROM: Glenn Chinavare, Director of Public Services & Utilities 
 
SUBJECT: Cost Agreement between MDOT and city of Owosso for road and safety improvements along 

Washington Street from Gute Street northerly to M-71 (Corunna Avenue) 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Approval of MDOT Cost Agreement No. 18-5568 for the proposed road improvements along Washington 
Street from Gute Street northerly to M-71 (Corunna Avenue). 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
On August 1, 2016, City Council approved city staff recommendation to make application to MDOT for Federal 
Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP) funds for the proposed rehabilitation of Washington Street from 
Gute Street to M-71 (Corunna Avenue).  The state of Michigan offers these funds for improvements along 
eligible roads of the federal-aid road system, such as Washington Street. Proposed work includes asphalt 
paving, intersection improvements, storm drainage, concrete curb and gutter, concrete sidewalk and ramp, 
water main installation, sanitary sewer repair, permanent signing, and pavement marking work; and all together 
with necessary related work (also referred to as ‘project’). The City is responsible to design and oversee the 
project in accordance with MDOT standards. The state agrees to reimburse the city for its share of federal 
funds, in accordance with the agreement.  
 
FISCAL IMPACTS:  
 
The total estimated cost for this project is $1,193,200.00 and of that amount, Federal HSIP funds will pay 
$600,000.00. The City’s estimated share is $593,200.00.  The City will also be responsible for any cost 
overruns exceeding the estimated cost for the project. Funds for the City’s estimated share of cost will be taken 
from the 2016 Unlimited Obligation Bond Proceeds ($491,900.00), Water Fund ($91,300.00), Wastewater 
Fund ($10,000.00) and other funds as appropriate. These amounts will be adjusted after MDOT receives bids 
and awards a contract to the successful bidder. 
 
Attachments: (1) Resolution 

(2) MDOT Cost Agreement 

 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO.  
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF MDOT COST AGREEMENT 
FOR ROAD IMPROVEMENTS OF WASHINGTON STREET 

FROM GUTE STREET NORTHERLY TO M-71 (CORUNNA AVENUE) 
 
WHEREAS, Washington Street, from Gute Street to M-71 (Corunna Avenue), is a part of the 
federal-aid road system; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City is required to provide a safe and expedient road system for users which 
requires proper maintenance of the roadway; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City has applied for, and is now approved to receive, Federal Highway Safety 
Improvement Program Funds to assist with necessary improvements to this street; and 
 
WHEREAS, after review, city staff recommends approval of MDOT Cost Agreement No. 18-
5568 for the proposed hot mix asphalt paving work along Washington Street from Gute Street 
northerly to M-71 (Corunna Avenue); including intersection improvements, storm drainage, 
concrete curb and gutter, concrete sidewalk and ramp, water main installation, sanitary sewer 
repair, permanent signing and pavement marking work; and all together with necessary related 
work (also referred to as ‘project’); and 
 
WHEREAS, the Michigan Department of Transportation requires the city of Owosso adopt a 
resolution indicating its willingness to participate in the street improvements of Washington 
Street as set forth in the agreement. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee 
County, Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: The City of Owosso has theretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary 
and in the public interest to approve MDOT Contract No. 18-5568 for the 
proposed reconstruction of Washington Street, from Gute Street northerly to M-
71 (Corunna Avenue). 

 
SECOND: The City of Owosso is willing to participate in the project and cost as illustrated 

within said Contract. 
 
THIRD: That the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized to sign the Contract as 

attached. 
 
FOURTH: The City Council hereby directs staff to allocate $593,200.00 from the 2016 

Unlimited Obligation Bond Proceeds Fund, Water Fund, and Wastewater Fund, 
and to receive another $600,000.00 from Federal Highway Safety Improvement 
Program Funds for a total of $1,193,200.00 to fund this project, and directs the 
City Manager to proceed with the project, in accordance with the said MDOT 
Contract. 

 
  
 
 



























































 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 

301 W. MAIN     OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958    WWW.CI.OWOSSO.MI.US 
 
  

DATE: January 29, 2019 
 
TO: Owosso City Council 
  
FROM: Glenn Chinavare, Director of Public Service Department 
 
SUBJECT: Application for Surface Transportation Program for the reconstruction of North Street from M-52 

(Shiawassee Street) to Hickory Street. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Approval of application to MDOT for proposed road improvements along North Street from M-52 (Shiawassee 
Street) easterly to Hickory Street as the first step in seeking federal Small Urban Program funds for the project. 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
The Michigan Department of Transportation has announced a call for projects for its FY2021-23 Small Urban 
Program. MDOT reports that sufficient federal funds should be available for street projects on the Federal-Aid road 
system. The City proposes to enter an application, specifically to reconstruct North Street from M-52 (Shiawassee 
Street) easterly to Hickory Street. Work scope includes pavement replacement, curb and gutter repairs, ADA 
sidewalk ramps at intersections, sidewalk repair, storm sewer, permanent pavement markings and signing; 
altogether with related work. This work will improve traffic flow and safety for both vehicular and pedestrian traffic. 
 
FISCAL IMPACTS:  
 
The total estimated cost for this project is $530,000.00; of which Small Urban funds, if approved by MDOT, will pay 
$347,000.00. The City’s share would be $183,000.00 funded from its Major Streets Fund and other funds as 
appropriated. The City will be responsible for providing full design engineering and construction administration 
services for the project.  Approval of the attached resolution will indicate Council’s support for the project and the 
funding required of the City.  MDOT requires the submission of such a resolution prior to consideration of any 
application for funds. 
 
This type funding normally reimburses up to 80% of actual project costs.  However, Owosso is capped for urban 
funding for this project at $347,000.00 as negotiated.  MDOT appropriates $375,000.00 per year of the pass through 
federal funds to this Regional Planning District area, which must be shared with SATA, city of Corunna, and the 
Shiawassee County Road Commission.  If MDOT does not approve the project and/or the necessary Small Urban 
Program funds, then it will be delayed until sufficient funds are made available. 
 
This memo is originated by: Glenn Chinavare, Director of Public Service Department. 
 
Attachments: (1) Resolution 

(2) MDOT Application 
(3) Map 
(4) Letter of Support 

 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO.  
 

AUTHORIZING APPLICATION FOR MDOT SMALL URBAN FUNDS 
FOR NORTH STREET FROM M-52 (SHIAWASSEE STREET) TO HICKORY STREET 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, Public Service Department recommends 
the reconstruction of North Street from M-52 (Shiawassee Street) easterly to Hickory Street; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Michigan Department of Transportation offers a portion of federal funds known as Small 
Urban Program funds for this type of work; and 
 
WHEREAS, roadway improvements that are eligible for these funds must be located on the federal-aid 
highway system and within the federal urban area boundary, such as North Street in the City of Owosso; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso proposes to procure Small Urban Program funds for the purpose of 
providing a maximum of 80 percent (80%) federal match to the City’s Major Street Funds or other funds 
as obligated; as outlined in its application. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: The City of Owosso has theretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in 
the public interest to proceed with the proposed roadway improvements. 

 
SECOND: The City of Owosso is actively seeking Small Urban Program funds to partially fund 

the reconstruction of North Street from M-52 (Shiawassee Street) easterly to Hickory 
Street and is willing to participate in the Small Urban program. 

 
THIRD: The proper city officials are authorized to sign the application documents and are 

further authorized to obligate city funds for the required match of the project cost. 
 
FOURTH: The city’s portion of costs shall be paid from the City’s Public Act 51 Major Streets 

Fund or other funds as obligated. 
 
 
 



MDOT SMALL URBAN PROGRAM Michigan Department 
of Transportation 

2606 (05/07)                                                                                  PROJECT APPLICATION 
 

ALL FIELDS MUST BE COMPLETED 
 

REQUESTING AGENCY INFORMATION 
AGENCY NAME 

 
 

CONTACT PERSON TELEPHONE NUMBER 

STREET ADDRESS 
 
 

CITY/ZIP E-MAIL ADDRESS 

 
 

PROJECT INFORMATION 
SMALL URBAN AREA 

 
 

SMALL URBAN AREA PRIORITY YEAR OF IMPROVEMENT 

ROAD NAME/TRANSIT PROJECT 
 
 

PROJECT LIMITS/LOCATION LENGTH (MILES) WORK TYPE CODE 

DESCRIPTION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
IS THE ROAD SEGMENT/PROJECT FEDERAL-AID ELIGIBLE?   YES [     ]  NO [     ] 
 
IS SIDEWALK WORK TO BE INCLUDED IN THE PARTICIPATING COSTS? YES [     ]  NO [     ] 
 
IS RIGHT-OF-WAY/LAND ACQUISITION REQUIRED?    YES [     ]  NO [     ] 
 

If Yes, please explain: __________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
DOES THE ROAD HAVE TRUCK RESTRICTIONS (Road Projects)?         YES [     ]                 NO [     ] 
 

If Yes, please explain: __________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
COST INFORMATION 

Include participating construction or transit capital costs only.  DO NOT include non-participating costs, including charges related to feasibility 
studies, design, testing, preliminary engineering, construction engineering, or right-of-way acquisition. 
 

STP–URBAN REQUESTED…………………...……………………..…………….…...………………..….  $_______________________ 

LOCAL MATCH ……………………………………………………………………….………....…………....  $_______________________ 

MDOT–BUS MATCH (Transit Projects) ….…………………………………………………….……….…..  $_______________________ 

OTHER (Describe: ____________________________________________________________) ….  $_______________________ 

PARTICIPATING CONSTRUCTION/TRANSIT CAPITAL TOTAL ……….………………….………...  $_______________________ 

 
OTHER COMMENTS 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SUBMITTED BY 
 
 

TITLE DATE 

 

Clear Form

City of Owosso Glenn Chinavare,  Director (989) 725-0550

301 W. Main Street Owosso, MI 48867 glenn.chinavare@ci.owosso.mi.us

Owosso/Corunna 2A 2023

North Street M-52 to Hickory Street .49 11,16

HMA pavement reconstruction (pavement replacement) with select curb and gutter repair, ADA sidewalk ramps, select 

sidewalk repair, storm sewer replacement, permanent pavement markings and signing; altogether with related road  

work items.

347,000.00

183,000.00

530,000.00

City of Owosso will furnish qualified engineering design and construction administration services at its own expense.

Randy Chesney City Engineer 01/18/19







 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 

301 W. MAIN     OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958    WWW.CI.OWOSSO.MI.US 
 
   

 
DATE: January 28, 2019 
 
TO: Owosso City Council 
  
FROM: Glenn Chinavare, Director of Public Services & Utilities 
 
SUBJECT: Application for Surface Transportation Program for the reconstruction of Gould Street from Oliver 

Street to Moore Street. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Approval of application to MDOT for proposed road improvements along Gould Street, from Oliver Street northerly to 
Moore Street, as the first step in seeking federal Small Urban Program funds for the project. 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
The Michigan Department of Transportation has announced a call for projects for its FY2021-23 Small Urban 
Program. MDOT reports that sufficient federal funds should be available for street projects on the Federal-Aid road 
system. The City proposes to enter an application, specifically to reconstruct Gould Street from Oliver Street 
northerly to Moore Street. Work scope includes pavement replacement, curb and gutter repairs, ADA sidewalk 
ramps at intersections, sidewalk repair, storm sewer, permanent pavement markings and signing; altogether with 
related work. This work will improve traffic flow and safety for both vehicular and pedestrian traffic. 
 
FISCAL IMPACTS:  
 
The total estimated cost for this project is $600,000.00; of which Small Urban funds, if approved by MDOT, will pay 
$295,000.00. The City’s share would be $305,000.00 funded from its Major Streets Fund and other funds as 
appropriated. The City will be responsible for providing full design engineering and construction administration 
services for the project.  Approval of the attached resolution will indicate Council’s support for the project and the 
funding required of the City.  MDOT requires the submission of such a resolution prior to consideration of any 
application for funds.   
 
This type funding normally reimburses up to 80% of actual project costs.  However, Owosso is capped for urban 
funding for this project at $295,000.00 as negotiated.  MDOT appropriates $375,000.00 per year of the pass through 
federal funds to this Regional Planning District area, which must be shared with SATA, city of Corunna, and the 
Shiawassee County Road Commission.  If MDOT does not approve the project and/or the necessary Small Urban 
Program funds, then it will be delayed until sufficient funds are made available. 
 
This memo is originated by: Glenn Chinavare, Director of Public Service Department. 
 
Attachments: (1) Resolution 

(2) MDOT Application 
(3) Map 
(4) Letter of Support 

 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO.  
 

AUTHORIZING APPLICATION FOR MDOT SMALL URBAN FUNDS 
GOULD STREET FROM OLIVER STREET TO MOORE STREET 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, Public Service Department recommends 
the reconstruction of Gould Street from Oliver Street northerly to Moore Street; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Michigan Department of Transportation offers a portion of federal funds known as Small 
Urban Program funds for this type of work; and 
 
WHEREAS, roadway improvements that are eligible for these funds must be located on the federal-aid 
highway system and within the federal urban area boundary, such as Gould Street in the City of Owosso; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso proposes to procure Small Urban Program funds for the purpose of 
providing a maximum of 80 percent (80%) federal match to the City’s Major Street Funds or other funds 
as obligated; as outlined in its application. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: The City of Owosso has theretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in 
the public interest to proceed with the proposed roadway improvements. 

 
SECOND: The City of Owosso is actively seeking Small Urban Program funds to partially fund 

the reconstruction of Gould Street from Oliver Street northerly to Moore Street and is 
willing to participate in the Small Urban program. 

 
THIRD: The proper city officials are authorized to sign the application documents and are 

further authorized to obligate city funds for the required match of the project cost. 
 
FOURTH: The city’s portion of costs shall be paid from the City’s Public Act 51 Major Streets 

Fund or other funds as obligated. 
 
 
 



MDOT SMALL URBAN PROGRAM Michigan Department 
of Transportation 

2606 (05/07)                                                                                  PROJECT APPLICATION 
 

ALL FIELDS MUST BE COMPLETED 
 

REQUESTING AGENCY INFORMATION 
AGENCY NAME 

 
 

CONTACT PERSON TELEPHONE NUMBER 

STREET ADDRESS 
 
 

CITY/ZIP E-MAIL ADDRESS 

 
 

PROJECT INFORMATION 
SMALL URBAN AREA 

 
 

SMALL URBAN AREA PRIORITY YEAR OF IMPROVEMENT 

ROAD NAME/TRANSIT PROJECT 
 
 

PROJECT LIMITS/LOCATION LENGTH (MILES) WORK TYPE CODE 

DESCRIPTION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
IS THE ROAD SEGMENT/PROJECT FEDERAL-AID ELIGIBLE?   YES [     ]  NO [     ] 
 
IS SIDEWALK WORK TO BE INCLUDED IN THE PARTICIPATING COSTS? YES [     ]  NO [     ] 
 
IS RIGHT-OF-WAY/LAND ACQUISITION REQUIRED?    YES [     ]  NO [     ] 
 

If Yes, please explain: __________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
DOES THE ROAD HAVE TRUCK RESTRICTIONS (Road Projects)?         YES [     ]                 NO [     ] 
 

If Yes, please explain: __________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
COST INFORMATION 

Include participating construction or transit capital costs only.  DO NOT include non-participating costs, including charges related to feasibility 
studies, design, testing, preliminary engineering, construction engineering, or right-of-way acquisition. 
 

STP–URBAN REQUESTED…………………...……………………..…………….…...………………..….  $_______________________ 

LOCAL MATCH ……………………………………………………………………….………....…………....  $_______________________ 

MDOT–BUS MATCH (Transit Projects) ….…………………………………………………….……….…..  $_______________________ 

OTHER (Describe: ____________________________________________________________) ….  $_______________________ 

PARTICIPATING CONSTRUCTION/TRANSIT CAPITAL TOTAL ……….………………….………...  $_______________________ 

 
OTHER COMMENTS 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SUBMITTED BY 
 
 

TITLE DATE 

 

Clear Form

City of Owosso Glenn Chinavare,  Director (989) 725-0550

301 W. Main Street Owosso, MI 48867 glenn.chinavare@ci.owosso.mi.us

Owosso/Corunna 3B 2023 or per MDOT direction

Gould Street Oliver Street to Moore Street .50 11, 16

HMA pavement reconstruction (pavement replacement) with select curb and gutter repair, ADA sidewalk ramps, select 

sidewalk repair, storm sewer replacement, permanent pavement markings and signing; altogether with related road  

work items.

295,000.00

305,000.00

600,000.00

City of Owosso will furnish qualified engineering design and construction administration services at its own expense.

Randy Chesney City Engineer 01/18/19















































































  1   

MINUTES 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE  

DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY/MAIN STREET 

CITY OF OWOSSO 

JANUARY 9, 2018 AT 8:00 AM 

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

 

CALL TO ORDER:  The meeting was called to order by Chairman Dave Acton at 7:35 a.m. 

ROLL CALL: Taken by Recording Secretary, Debbie Hebert. 

AUTHORITY MEMBERS PRESENT: Chairman Dave Acton, Vice-Chairman Bill Gilbert (7:42 a.m.),     
Jon Moore, Lance Omer, Theresa Trecha, Jim Woodworth. 

MEMBERS ABSENT:. Mayor Chris Eveleth, Kevin Wiles 

OTHERS PRESENT:  Josh Adams-Main Street Manager 

AGENDA:   

Approved as moved by Authority Member Woodworth and supported by Authority Member Trecha 
to approve the Agenda for the January 9, 2019 meeting as presented,  

AYES: ALL.  MOTION CARRIED.     

MINUTES:   

A motion was made by Authority Member Woodworth to approve the minutes of the meeting held 
November 7, 2018 as presented and supported by Authority Member Omer. 

AYES: ALL.  MOTION CARRIED 

PUBLIC COMMENTS:  None 

ITEMS OF BUSINESS:   

1) CHECK REGISTER 

Discussion surrounding the ice skating rink donations and expense - Approved as moved by Authority 
Member Moore and supported by Authority Member Woodworth to approve the Check Register for 
November, 2018 as presented.  
 
AYES ALL.  MOTION CARRIED. 

 

2) BUDGET REPORT – JOSH ADAMS, MAINSTREET MANAGER 

Adams may need to utilize reserve funds depending on spring fund raising.  More promotions were done, 
less funds raised from Glow this past year. Maintenance expenses increased including trash pickup. 
Overall, events were successful and business owners benefited by them. 



  2   

DDA will receive approximately $17,000 from the Parks/Recreation and Historic Commission 2 year 
mileage passed. Revenue will begin in 2021. 

3) MMS MASTER LEVEL CONTRACT  

It was agreed that affiliation with the Michigan Main Street Program positions the board to received direct 
and indirect benefits. 

A motion was made by Vice Chairman Bill Gilbert and supported by Lance Omer to sign the 2 year 
agreement to continue the Master Level Contract.   

AYES ALL.  MOTION CARRIED. 
 

4) ADDITIONAL CHECK SIGNATURE  
 
Checks must be signed by a Board Member utilizing accountability tracking sheets.    At times, an 
additional signer would be beneficial when others are unavailable.   
 
A motion was made by Authority Member Woodworth to approve Authority Member Jon Moore as 
an additional authorized check signer and supported by Authority Member Bill Gilbert. 
 
AYES ALL.  MOTION CARRIED. 
 

5) PROGRAM ASSESSMENT TOOL - Discussion 
 
Josh Adams issued a reminder to complete the assessment tool and submit it to him within the next 
week.  Josh will resend the document to all. 
 

6) BOARD RETREAT – Discussion 
 
It will be held Thursday, January 31, 2019 at the Wesener Building.  Topics will be Mission; Vision; Goals 
and Objectives; DDA/TIF Plan narrative with Amy Cyphert, Assistant City Manager/Community 
Development. 
 
COMMITTEE UPDATES: 

1) Design & Business Vitality – Did not meet in December, 2018.   
 
Subcommittee Streetscapes should obtain bids for flower beds and tidying  up downtown to begin work in 
May, 2018 utilizing funds from the $35,000 of 494 Streetscape Bond.  Adams will attempt to obtain MEDC  
matching funds grant for the $35,000.  The discussion to meet with City Manager, Nathan Henne was 
revisited. Members discussed who would serve on the committee. The committee will meet at 9:00 AM on 
January 16, 2019.  

 
2) Promotion & Outreach – Did not meet in December, 2018.   

 
3) Business Owners Committee 

 
Committee scheduled to meet Tuesday, January 15th at 6:30 P.M. at Jim Woodworth’s apartment 
development above Radio Shack.  The list of Business Owner contacts will be reviewed to eliminate 
inappropriate contacts.   The distribution list will be reviewed, purged and locked. 
 
 
 
 

 



  3   

4) Manager Updates  

 Highlights of report: Wayfinding signage is complete.   Department of Public Works will install large 
maps.  Façade Grant signing is complete, next move will be by First Contracting to set up scaffolding to 
begin work. Information was offered about Grubstake, which is training provided to the community to 
invest in local business. Matching on Main was discussed.  

 

BOARD CONTINUING EDUCATION/INFORMATION  

1) Board Self-Assessment Due 

2) Director Report 

3) 2019 Event Calendar 

 
PUBLIC COMMENTS:  None 

BOARD COMMENTS:    

Sidewalk sales date on calendar is usually contingent on JC Penney.  It was discussed to be proactive, 
choose a date and offer it to JC Penney if the local store can decide apart from Corporate.   The dates of 
July 18, 19, 20 and 21st are the most likely dates to offer to JC Penney. 

Gallagher’s Frozen Yogurt is not going out of business.  The business is For Sale.  They will reopen in 
spring even if not sold. 

Bagelman has closed.  The owners plan to retire. There may be a future similar  business reopening the 
building. 

ADJOURNMENT:  

It was moved by Vice-Chairman Bill Gilbert and supported by Authority Member Moore to adjourn 
at 8:41 A.M. 

AYES: ALL.  MOTION CARRIED.  

                          
   



OWOSSO MID-SHIAWASSEE COUNTY WWTP REVIEW BOARD 

MEETING MINUTES 

 

January 29, 2019     4:30 P.M.    WWTP 
 
1. Roll 
 Members Present: R. Holzheuer, G. Burk, D. Chrenka 
 Alternates Present: T. Crawford 
 Others Present:  T. Guysky, WWTP Superintendent/Board Secretary 
     

    
2. Minutes of the September 29, 2018 meeting:  Motion by Crawford to approve the September 29, 

2018 meeting minutes with support by Burk.  No Discussion.  Motion carries 4-0. 
 
3. Secretary’s Report: 

     a)   Plant Performance Summaries (April 2018):   Guysky noted full permit compliance for the   
months of September-December 2018, with minor changes to our discharge limitations 
now in effect since the NPDES permit reissuance. 

 
b)  Operations Update:  Guysky noted continuing good plant performance, with chemical and 

energy usage on the low side.   

c)  WWTP Staffing Update: Guysky noted an open operator position has just been filled and 
the plant is back to full staff.  The operator position was open due to an operator bidding 
on an open position in the sewer maintenance department. 

d)  WWTP Project Updates:  Guysky noted the sludge thickener project is proceeding roughly 
on schedule, with the concrete tank having just been painted and equipment installation 
will begin after the paint cure is complete.  He noted that a return to full thickener 
operation is expected near the beginning of March.  The plant backup generator was 
discussed, with Guysky giving details on the expiring Consumers Energy “dual feed” 
contract, and the proposed generator design.  He noted that further information from 
Consumers Energy will be obtained so a decision can be made as to keeping the east 
source functional as an extreme emergency option, or whether that source equipment is 
demolished and that feed point used for the generator, which would allow the WWTP to 
utilized the existing switchgear rather than purchasing new transfer gear. 

4. Old Business 
a)  OHM Advisors Regional System Flow Evaluation Update:  Neither Burk nor Guysky has 

had the opportunity to thoroughly review the latest revision submitted by OHM, so 
discussion was tabled until the February meeting.  There was a short discussion to follow 
up on the collection system tour by the board members in October 2018.  No workable 
ideas came out of the tour with respect to sending current flow data to the WWTP.  
Chrenka asked if the retention basin discussed recently was strictly a City of Owosso 
project/expense.  Burk confirmed that it is, and that the purpose of that basin is to reduce 
sanitary sewer overflows (SSOs) within the Owosso collection system. It won’t 
necessarily help with the WWTP backup events, and that further retention at the plant 



would likely be required if we fail to achieve system wide reduction of I/I and peak wet 
weather flows to the plant.  Chrenka also noted that Owosso Township has formed a 
subcommittee for reviewing wastewater treatment plant issues including capacity 
allocation. 

   
 
5. New Business 
   a) Sewer Use Ordinances; pH Significant Noncompliance Definition:  Guysky discussed the 

need for updating the existing Sewer Use Ordinances to add a definition for pH 
significant noncompliance (SNC) as it relates to industrial monitoring/ordinance 
enforcement.  He provided the current language, which defines SNC for all parameters 
except pH.  He also provided EPA recommended language for defining pH SNC.  
Guysky stated that he will have more information at future board meetings, and this was 
an initial discussion of the issue.  There was discussion about the need to provide 
equivalent Municipal Civil Infractions procedures in all service units’ ordinances, and to 
agree on assigning responsibility for issuing them to noncompliant users.   

 
   b)  2018 WWTP Flow Summary:  Burk noted that all service units were within their annual 

and seasonal average capacity allocation. However peak flows in February 2018 
exceeded plant pumping capacity. The resulting surcharge resulted in an overflow (i.e. 
SSO) from the plant. 

 
   c)  FY Ending June 30, 2018 Audit Report: Burk noted the combined capital and operating 

reserves decreased from approx. $2.4 million to approx. $1.8 million during FY 2017-18.  
Screenings and primary clarifier projects account for the decrease, with another decrease 
expected in FY 2018-19, with reserves estimated at $1.2 million at the end of the current 
fiscal year due to the sludge thickener and generator projects. 

  
   d)  WWTP Future Rehab Projects and Funding:  Copies of the WWTP Capital Improvement 

Plan (CIP) were distributed, with explanation by Burk, who noted that project items #2 
(sludge thickener) and #3(generator) were underway and being paid with the reserve 
funds.  Burk noted that the City of Owosso is preparing an application for project 
financing through the Michigan State Revolving Fund (SRF).  He noted that project 
phasing is being discussed, as well as whether to go with multiple, smaller SRF projects 
in the coming years, or to do a larger, more-encompassing project.  Pros and cons of each 
approach were discussed by the board.  Chrenka asked when the payback for the SRF 
would begin, and Burk stated that it would likely be around 2022.  Burk explained a bit 
about the SRF qualifying process, and noted that the board should also consider 
increasing the Replacement Charge, perhaps stepping it up to $400,000 then $500,000 the 
next two years in preparation for the coming debt service and to prevent further reduction 
of the fund balance while financing replacements (e.g. main building re-roofing) over the 
next two fiscal years. 

 
6. Citizens’/Members’ Comments:   

   
7. Next Meeting:  February 26, 2019, 4:30 pm  



 
8. Adjourn:  Motion to adjourn by Crawford, with support by Chrenka.  No discussion.  Motion 

carries 4-0.  Meeting adjourned at 6:05 p.m.   
 
Respectfully submitted, Timothy J. Guysky, Secretary 
Approval by Review Board – Pending 


	AGENDA
	APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES
	190122CouncilMinutes

	PROCLAMATIONS / SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS
	PUBLIC HEARINGS
	1. ProposedSpecialAssessmentProject-RyanStreet

	CITIZEN COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS
	CITY MANAGER REPORT
	1. Project Status Report

	CONSENT AGENDA
	1. SpecialAssessmentDistrictNo2019-14-WilliamsStreet
	2. Boards and Commissions Appointments
	3. PurchaseAuthorization-WaterLinePushCamera
	4. PurchaseAuthorization-DPWFleetPickupTrucks
	5. MDOTCostAgreementNo18-5568

	ITEMS OF BUSINESS
	1. SurfaceTransportationProgramFundAppliation-NorthStreet
	2. SurfaceTransportationProgramFundAppliation-GouldStreet

	COMMUNICATIONS
	1. Revenue&ExpenditureReport-December2018
	2. DDAMinutes-190109
	3. WWTPReviewBoardMinutes-190129

	CITIZEN COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS
	NEXT MEETING
	BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS OPENINGS
	ADJOURNMENT



